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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S



         2           THE COURT:  GOOD AFTERNOON.



         3           MR. LACOVARA:  GOOD AFTERNOON, YOUR HONOR.



         4                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION



         5  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         6  Q.   DR. WARREN-BOULTON, WHEN WE BROKE FOR LUNCH, WE WERE



         7  TALKING ABOUT THE PROPOSITION THAT THE DEGREE TO WHICH A



         8  PLATFORM OR AN OPERATING SYSTEM IS ACCEPTED BEARS A



         9  RELATIONSHIP TO ITS ATTRACTIVENESS TO APPLICATIONS



        10  DEVELOPERS.  DO YOU REMEMBER THAT GENERAL TESTIMONY?



        11  A.   I'M NOT SURE IF THAT'S WHAT WE WERE TALKING ABOUT,



        12  BUT I'M AWARE OF THE PROPOSITION, YES.



        13  Q.   YOU ARE FAMILIAR WITH THE MACINTOSH COMPUTER



        14  MANUFACTURED BY APPLE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   AND YOU HAVE EXCLUDED THE MAC AND THE MAC OPERATING



        17  SYSTEM FROM YOUR DEFINITION OF THE MARKET; ISN'T THAT ALSO



        18  CORRECT?



        19  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        20  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW MANY APPLES--HOW MANY MACINTOSHES



        21  APPLE SOLD IN THE LAST YEAR?



        22  A.   I CAN'T GIVE YOU THE NUMBER.



        23  Q.   DO YOU HAVE A SENSE OF THE ORDER OF MAGNITUDE?



        24  A.   IN THE LAST YEAR, MAYBE SIX PERCENT, AROUND THAT, OF



        25  THE DESKTOP.�
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         1  Q.   THE QUESTION, SIR, WAS THE NUMBER.



         2  A.   NO.



         3  Q.   DO YOU KNOW THE NUMBER OF UNITS?



         4  A.   NO.



         5  Q.   LET ME REPRESENT TO YOU THAT IT'S 850,000.



         6           DO YOU KNOW HOW MANY UNITS OF ITS NEW IMAC



         7  PRODUCT MACINTOSH OR APPLE SOLD BETWEEN AUGUST 15TH AND



         8  SEPTEMBER 25TH?



         9  A.   NO.



        10  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THE NUMBER TO BE IN EXCESS OF A



        11  QUARTER MILLION?



        12  A.   IT'S A VERY SUCCESSFUL PRODUCT.



        13  Q.   AND EACH OF THOSE VERY SUCCESSFUL PRODUCTS SHIPPED



        14  WITH THE MAC OS; CORRECT?



        15  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        16  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT NONE OF THOSE 250,000



        17  PURCHASERS WERE POTENTIAL PURCHASERS OF WHAT YOU DEFINE AS



        18  A PERSONAL COMPUTER?



        19  A.   NO.



        20  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW MANY WERE POTENTIAL PC PURCHASERS?



        21  A.   NO.



        22  Q.   IS IT RELEVANT TO YOUR ANALYSIS THAT SOME NUMBER OF



        23  THE PEOPLE WHO BOUGHT IMACS WOULD OTHERWISE HAVE BOUGHT OR



        24  CONSIDERED BUYING, IN FACT, WHAT YOU CALL A PC?



        25  A.   WHAT'S RELEVANT TO MY ANALYSIS IS THE ISSUE AS TO�
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         1  WHETHER OR NOT THE AVAILABILITY OF THE MAC OPERATING



         2  SYSTEM OR, ACTUALLY, THE WHOLE MAC CONSTRAINS THE PRICING



         3  OF THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM TO A COMPETITIVE LEVEL.



         4  AND SINCE THE ANSWER TO THAT IS NO, THAT'S THE



         5  MARKET-DEFINITION PROCESS THAT I WENT THROUGH.



         6  Q.   I SEE.  SO, IN THINKING ABOUT WHAT IS THE RELEVANT



         7  MARKET WHEN YOU TESTIFIED TO THE COURT, IT DOESN'T MATTER



         8  TO YOU THAT A USER MIGHT WALK INTO A COMPUTER STORE AND



         9  SAY, "MY CHOICE IS BETWEEN THE MACINTOSH AND A GATEWAY OR



        10  AN HP OR A SONY INTEL-BASED COMPUTER"?



        11           (BEEPER SOUNDS OFF.)



        12  A.   TWO POINTS.  AND FIRST OF ALL, WE ARE--WE ARE



        13  DEFINING THE MARKET--



        14           THE COURT:  LET ME GO BACK AND GET THE QUESTION



        15  AGAIN.  GO AHEAD AND ASK THE QUESTION AGAIN.



        16           MR. LACOVARA:  IT WAS, IN ESSENCE, YOUR HONOR:



        17  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        18  Q.   DOES IT MATTER TO YOUR DEFINITION OF THE MARKET THAT



        19  INDIVIDUALS WHO WERE GOING TO ACQUIRE OR MAY ACQUIRE A



        20  COMPUTER ACTUALLY, IN FACT, CHOOSE BETWEEN THE MACINTOSH



        21  AND THE MAC OS AND A COMPUTER MANUFACTURED BY GATEWAY OR



        22  DELL OR ANOTHER OEM THAT USES THE INTEL MICROPROCESSOR?



        23  A.   I THINK TWO POINTS.  THE FIRST IS THAT THE MACINTOSH



        24  IS A COMPLETE COMPUTER.  AND YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT THE



        25  CHOICE BETWEEN A MACINTOSH COMPUTER AND A PC MANUFACTURED�
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         1  BY, FOR EXAMPLE, GATEWAY.  THE RELEVANT MARKET THAT WE



         2  HAVE HERE IS THE MARKET FOR OPERATING SYSTEMS.



         3           THAT'S--SO, WHILE--IF YOU WERE TALKING ABOUT WHAT



         4  ARE THE SUBSTITUTES FOR A PC, YOU WOULD CONCLUDE,



         5  PROBABLY, THAT THE CLOSEST SUBSTITUTE FOR A PERSONAL



         6  COMPUTER--THAT IS, TO SAY AN INTEL ARCHITECTURE PERSONAL



         7  COMPUTER--COULD WELL BE A (SIC) APPLE.  BUT THE MARKET



         8  THAT WE ARE LOOKING AT HERE IS THE MARKET FOR OPERATING



         9  SYSTEMS.



        10  Q.   WELL, LET ME SORT OF TEST THAT IN THE REAL WORLD.



        11           DO PEOPLE, IN YOUR EXPERIENCE, OR TO THE EXTENT



        12  YOU STUDIED THIS, DO THEY SAY, "I'M GOING TO CHOOSE



        13  BETWEEN A COMPUTER--AN OPERATING SYSTEM THAT IS DESIGNED



        14  TO RUN ON THE POWER PC CHIP VERSUS THE INTEL CHIP"?



        15  A.   NO.  I THINK PEOPLE SELECT PC'S.



        16  Q.   RIGHT.  PC'S OR THEY SELECT COMPUTERS?



        17  A.   THEY SELECT COMPUTERS.



        18  Q.   AND SO THEY DON'T SAY, "I'M GOING TO MAKE A CHOICE



        19  BETWEEN THE MAC OS AND WINDOWS 98," DO THEY, SIR?



        20  A.   IN GENERAL, NO.



        21  Q.   SO, THEY'RE LOOKING FOR A COMPUTING SOLUTION?



        22  A.   THE DEMAND FOR AN OPERATING SYSTEM IS A DERIVE



        23  DEMAND, AS I EXPLAINED IN THE TESTIMONY.



        24  Q.   DERIVED FROM THE DEMAND FOR WHAT?



        25  A.   IT'S DERIVED FROM THE DEMAND FOR COMPUTERS, WHICH, IN�
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         1  TURN, IS DERIVED FROM THE DEMAND FOR INFORMATION, WHICH,



         2  IN TURNS, DERIVES THE DEMAND FROM SOMETHING ELSE.



         3  Q.   SO, IF IT DERIVES DEMANDS, WHY IS IT NOT APPROPRIATE



         4  TO PUT THE MAC OS IN EXACTLY THE SAME MARKET AS THE



         5  WINDOWS 98 BECAUSE THEY'RE BOTH DERIVED FROM EXACTLY THE



         6  SAME DEMAND, ARE THEY NOT?



         7  A.   BECAUSE IT'S NOT THE ANSWER TO THE RELEVANT QUESTION.



         8  WHEN YOU DEFINE A MARKET, YOU'RE ASKING THE QUESTION,



         9  "WHAT HAPPENS IF YOU RAISE THE PRICE OF THE PRODUCT IN



        10  QUESTION," WHICH HAPPENS TO BE AN OPERATING SYSTEM.  THE



        11  ISSUE IS, IF YOU RAISE THE PRICE OF THE WINDOWS OPERATING



        12  SYSTEM BY SOME SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT, WILL SO MANY PEOPLE



        13  SWITCH TO A MACINTOSH OPERATING SYSTEM?  AND BY THAT, AS



        14  YOU POINTED OUT, THE ENTIRE MACINTOSH COMPUTER HAS TO MAKE



        15  SUCH A PRICE INCREASE UNPROFITABLE.



        16           AND AS I EXPLAINED IN MY TESTIMONY, THE VERY FACT



        17  THAT IN ORDER TO GO FROM A WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM TO A



        18  MAC OPERATING SYSTEM, YOU CAN'T JUST CHANGE THE OPERATING



        19  SYSTEM.  YOU HAVE GOT TO CHANGE THE WHOLE COMPUTER.  MEANS



        20  THAT, AS A PRACTICAL MATTER, IF YOU INCREASE THE PRICE OF



        21  THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM BY A SMALL BUT SIGNIFICANT



        22  AMOUNT--10, 15, 20, 30 PERCENT--NOT ENOUGH PEOPLE ARE



        23  GOING TO DECIDE, THEREFORE, THAT IT'S WORTH IT TO SWITCH



        24  TO THE MAC PLATFORM TO MAKE THAT PRICE INCREASE



        25  UNPROFITABLE.  THAT'S WHY IT'S NOT IN THE MARKET.�
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         1  Q.   WELL, SIR, ISN'T THE FACT THAT PEOPLE ARE SWITCHING



         2  TO THE MAC PLATFORM WITHOUT ANY PRICE INCREASE AT ALL?



         3  A.   IS THAT A FACT?



         4  Q.   YES, SIR.



         5  A.   THE MAC IS SUCCESSFUL, BUT ONCE AGAIN, AN EXERCISE OF



         6  DEFINING A MARKET IS NOT A QUESTION OF WHETHER THAT MARKET



         7  IS SHIFTING.  THE RELEVANT QUESTION THAT'S ALWAYS YOU HAVE



         8  TO KEEP IN MIND IS, DOES THE AVAILABILITY OF THAT PRODUCT



         9  OUT THERE CONSTRAIN THE PRICING OF THE FIRM IN QUESTION.



        10  AND IN THIS EXAMPLE THAT YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT WITH THE MAC



        11  OS, CLEARLY, IT DOES NOT MAKE SENSE THAT A SIGNIFICANT



        12  INCREASE IN THE PRICE OF THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM WILL



        13  RESULT IN SO MANY PEOPLE SWITCHING BECAUSE OF THAT PRICE



        14  INCREASE TO A MACINTOSH COMPUTER AS TO MAKE THAT PRICE



        15  INCREASE UNPROFITABLE.



        16           JUST THINK THROUGH THE KINDS OF NUMBERS THAT YOU



        17  ARE TALKING ABOUT HERE.  THE OPERATING SYSTEM--COST OF AN



        18  OPERATING SYSTEM IS A SMALL SHARE OF THE COST OF THE PC.



        19  SO, EVEN IF IT'S TEN PERCENT OF THE COST OF A PC, IF YOU



        20  RAISE THE PRICE OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM BY TEN PERCENT, YOU



        21  HAVE RAISED THE PRICE OF THE PC BY ONE PERCENT.  THEN THE



        22  QUESTION IS:  HOW MANY PEOPLE, IN RESPONSE TO YOUR



        23  QUESTION, A ONE PERCENT INCREASE IN THE PRICE OF THE



        24  COMPUTER, WILL SWITCH TO THE MACINTOSH?  AND THE ANSWER



        25  IS, THAT NUMBER IS LIKELY TO BE FAIRLY SMALL.�
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         1  Q.   SO, YOUR TESTIMONY IS BECAUSE THE MERGER GUIDELINES



         2  LED YOU HERE, YOU DEFINE A MARKET BY WHAT WOULD HAPPEN IF



         3  PEOPLE--IF MICROSOFT INCREASED THE PRICE OF ITS OPERATING



         4  SYSTEM--



         5  A.   NO.



         6  Q.   --ACTUALLY DO IN THE MARKET TODAY?



         7  A.   NO, THE EXERCISE IN THE MERGER GUIDELINES IS TO ASK



         8  THE QUESTION, "WHAT WOULD HAPPEN IF MICROSOFT INCREASES



         9  THE PRICE, OR HYPOTHETICALLY INCREASES THE PRICE OF THE



        10  OPERATING SYSTEM?"  SINCE THIS IS A MONOPOLIZATION CASE,



        11  WE ARE ASKING THE QUESTION, "WHAT THE HAPPEN IF MICROSOFT



        12  INCREASED THE PRICE OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM ABOVE THE



        13  COMPETITIVE LEVEL?"



        14           NOW, AS WE DISCUSSED BEFORE, YOU WERE THEN GOING



        15  TO ASK ME WHAT'S THE COMPETITIVE LEVEL.  TO ANSWER THE



        16  QUESTION IN A CONTEXT OF A MONOPOLIZATION CASE, WE COULD



        17  ASK THE QUESTION NOT WHAT WOULD HAPPEN IF MICROSOFT



        18  INCREASED THE PRICE OF ITS OPERATING SYSTEM OVER THE



        19  CURRENT LEVEL IN TERMS OF HOW MANY PEOPLE WOULD SWITCH TO



        20  A MACINTOSH, BUT ASK THE QUESTION, "SUPPOSE THAT



        21  MACINTOSH--SUPPOSE THAT MICROSOFT REDUCED THE PRICE OF ITS



        22  OPERATING SYSTEM, OKAY?  HOW MANY NEW PEOPLE WOULD SWITCH



        23  FROM THE MACINTOSH TO THE IBM PC ARCHITECTURE," AND THE



        24  ANSWER IS GOING TO BE VERY, VERY SMALL.



        25  Q.   DO YOU REMEMBER THE QUESTION I ASKED YOU?�
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         1  A.   PROBABLY NOT.



         2  Q.   OKAY.



         3           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER



         4  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1914, AN APPLE CORPORATION PRESS



         5  RELEASE DATED OCTOBER 14, 1998, ENTITLED "APPLE CAPS



         6  FISCAL YEAR WITH STRONG RESULTS."



         7           MR. SCHWARTZ:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



         8           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 1914 IS ADMITTED.



         9                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1914 WAS



        10                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        11  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        12  Q.   DR. WARREN-BOULTON, IT'S A FAIRLY DENSE PRESS



        13  RELEASE.  PLEASE TAKE AS MUCH TIME AS YOU WANT TO REVIEW



        14  IT.  MY QUESTIONS WILL BE CONFINED TO THE FOURTH



        15  PARAGRAPH, THE ONE THAT BEGINS, "APPLE SHIPPED 278,000



        16  IMACS IN THE PRODUCT'S FIRST SIX WEEKS."



        17           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



        18  Q.   HAVE YOU HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO REVIEW IT?



        19  A.   YES, AT LEAST THE FIRST FOUR PARAGRAPHS.



        20  Q.   I TAKE IT YOU HAVE NO REASON TO DISAGREE WITH THE



        21  RESULTS OF APPLE'S SURVEY THAT WERE REPORTED IN THIS



        22  PARAGRAPH, DO YOU?



        23  A.   NO.



        24  Q.   AND DO YOU REGARD IT AT ALL SIGNIFICANT FOR PURPOSES



        25  OF DEFINING THE MARKETPLACE--OR THE MARKET, EXCUSE ME--FOR�
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         1  ANTITRUST PURPOSES THAT 29.4 PERCENT OF THE IMAC BUYERS



         2  ARE FIRST-TIME COMPUTER BUYERS WHO OWN NEITHER A MACINTOSH



         3  OR A WINTEL PC?



         4  A.   YOU ARE ASKING ME WHAT IS THE ECONOMIC SIGNIFICANCE



         5  OF THAT TO ME?



         6  Q.   THE QUESTION IS:  DO YOU REGARD IT AT ALL SIGNIFICANT



         7  FOR YOUR ANALYSIS THAT--THAT FACT?



         8  A.   THE ABILITY OF MAC TO SELL IN THE MARKET IS PROBABLY



         9  EASIER WITH FIRST-TIME USERS THAN WITH OTHERS, BUT NOTHING



        10  IN PARTICULAR.



        11  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU REGARD IT AT ALL SIGNIFICANT FOR ANY



        12  ASPECT OF YOUR ANALYSIS THAT 12 AND A HALF PERCENT OF IMAC



        13  BUYERS ARE, IN APPLE'S WORDS, QUOTE, CONVERTS,



        14  CLOSED-QUOTE, WHO FIRST OWNED A PC, WHAT THEY CALLED A



        15  WINTEL PC, WHICH YOU INTERPRET TO MEAN A PC THAT HAD



        16  WINDOWS; CORRECT?



        17  A.   AND INTEL, YES.



        18  Q.   YES.



        19           IS THAT SIGNIFICANT FOR ANY PURPOSE?



        20  A.   NONE COMES TO MIND.



        21  Q.   WELL, YOU HAVE SOME TESTIMONY ABOUT SWITCHING COSTS,



        22  DON'T YOU?



        23  A.   YES.  ARE WE GOING ANY PLACE IN PARTICULAR?



        24  Q.   IN GENERAL, YOUR THEORY IS THAT THERE ARE SOME COSTS



        25  FOR PEOPLE CHANGING OPERATING SYSTEMS; RIGHT?  YOU CALL�

                                                           13



         1  THAT A SWITCHING COST?



         2  A.   YES.



         3  Q.   SIGNIFICANT TO THAT ANALYSIS, THE 12 AND A HALF



         4  PERCENT OF THE 278,000 PEOPLE WHO BOUGHT IMAC IN SIX WEEKS



         5  SEEM TO SWALLOW THOSE SWITCHING COSTS?



         6  A.   NO, I'M NOT SAYING THAT IT'S IMPOSSIBLE TO SWITCH,



         7  IF--IF MACINTOSH COMES OUT WITH, AS THEY DID, A GOOD



         8  PRODUCT, PEOPLE WILL--SOME PEOPLE WILL BUY IT.  SOME OF



         9  THOSE PEOPLE USED TO BUY, OR ALSO--THOSE PEOPLE COULD ALSO



        10  BE PEOPLE WHO HAVE WINTEL PC'S.



        11           THAT'S--THE QUESTION ISN'T "WILL PEOPLE SHIFT



        12  THEIR DEMAND?"  THE QUESTION IS, "WILL PEOPLE SHIFT THEIR



        13  DEMAND IN RESPONSE TO A PRICE INCREASE?"  IF MACINTOSH



        14  COMES OUT WITH AN IMAC, WHICH IS A SUCCESSFUL PRODUCT,



        15  PEOPLE WILL SHIFT DEMAND TO THE IMAC, BUT THE QUESTION IN



        16  TERMS OF MONOPOLY POWER IS, "IS THAT SHIFT IN DEMAND



        17  BECAUSE OF AN INCREASE IN THE PRICE CHARGED FOR THE



        18  OPERATING SYSTEM?"  AND THE ANSWER IS, THERE IS NOTHING IN



        19  THAT STATEMENT THAT SAYS THAT PEOPLE WERE BUYING APPLE OR



        20  SHIFT TO APPLE BECAUSE OF AN INCREASE IN THE PRICE OF



        21  WINDOWS.



        22  Q.   OKAY.  SO, THERE IS NOTHING RELEVANT ABOUT YOUR



        23  HYPOTHESIS THAT MICROSOFT HAS MONOPOLY POWER THAT, AS YOU



        24  JUST SAID, IF APPLE MAKES A GOOD PRODUCT, PEOPLE WILL



        25  SHIFT AWAY FROM MICROSOFT'S OPERATING SYSTEM?  WHAT KIND�
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         1  OF MONOPOLY IS THAT?



         2  A.   THERE ARE ALWAYS SUBSTITUTES.  IF PEOPLE MAKE--IF



         3  APPLE MAKES A BETTER PRODUCT, MORE PEOPLE WILL BUY APPLE.



         4  IF GATEWAY AND ALL THE OTHER SPONSORS OF THE PC PLATFORM



         5  DO A BETTER JOB, PEOPLE WILL BUY MORE PC'S.



         6           THE PRESENCE OF COMPETITORS AT THE WHOLE COMPUTER



         7  MARKET DOES NOT ARGUE--YOU CANNOT INFER FROM THAT THE



         8  ABSENCE OF A MONOPOLY POWER IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM



         9  MARKET.



        10  Q.   AND THE PRESENCE OF A COMPETING OPERATING SYSTEM,



        11  WHICH USERS SEEM QUITE WILLING TO SWITCH TO, DOESN'T



        12  AFFECT YOUR ANALYSIS OF THE MONOPOLY POWER EITHER, DOES



        13  IT?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?



        14  A.   I CAN'T TELL YOU HOW READILY PEOPLE ARE READY TO



        15  SWITCH TO ON THE BASIS OF THAT.



        16           THE POINT IS THAT I THINK I WENT THROUGH BEFORE



        17  AND, PERHAPS, TOO MUCH LENGTH IS, THE INCREASE IN THE



        18  PRICE OF THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM WILL NOT, NOR DOES



        19  THIS SHOW, RESULT IN A SIGNIFICANT NUMBER OF PEOPLE



        20  SWITCHING TO THE MAC PLATFORM.  THEY MAY SWITCH FOR OTHER



        21  REASONS, BUT NOT BECAUSE THE PRICE OF THE WINDOWS



        22  OPERATING SYSTEM IS INCREASED, AND THAT'S THE ANSWER TO



        23  THE QUESTION.



        24  Q.   AND YOU TESTIMONY IS, THE ONLY RELEVANT QUESTION IS



        25  WHETHER THEY WILL SWITCH TO A PRICE INCREASE NOT WHETHER�
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         1  THEY WILL SWITCH TO AN APPROVED PRODUCT OR EVEN IN THE



         2  ABSENCE OF ANY PRICE INCREASE AT ALL?



         3  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.  WE ARE ASKING THE QUESTION, "WHAT



         4  IS THE CONSTRAINTS ON MONOPOLY PRICING OF THE OPERATING



         5  SYSTEM?"  YOU CAN HAVE A MONOPOLY IN A PRODUCT WHICH IS IN



         6  A DECLINING MARKET AND IT COULD STILL BE A MONOPOLY.  THE



         7  FACT THAT THE DEMAND FOR THE PRODUCT, AS A WHOLE, IS



         8  INCREASING OR DECREASING IS NOT THE RELEVANT QUESTION.



         9  THE RELEVANT QUESTION IS, "IS THE PRICE OF THAT PRODUCT



        10  BEING HELD ABOVE THE COMPETITIVE LEVEL?"  THAT'S A



        11  QUESTION AS TO WHAT THE EFFECT ON DEMAND IS IF YOU RAISE



        12  THE PRICE, NOT IF SOMETHING ELSE HAPPENS.



        13  Q.   NOW, IF YOU WERE, HYPOTHETICALLY, TO INCLUDE THE MAC



        14  OS IN YOUR DEFINITION OF THE RELEVANT OPERATING SYSTEM



        15  PRODUCT MARKET, DO YOU HAVE AN IDEA WHAT ITS MARKET SHARE



        16  WOULD BE?



        17  A.   IN TERMS OF UNITS?



        18  Q.   HOWEVER YOU WANT TO EXPRESS "MARKET SHARE."



        19  A.   YES.  I THINK PROBABLY AT THE MOMENT, THE MAC WOULD



        20  BE ABOUT--OF AN OVERALL DESKTOP MARKET, PERHAPS NINE



        21  PERCENT.



        22  Q.   NINE PERCENT?



        23  A.   YEAH.



        24  Q.   AND YOU HAVE A GREAT DEAL OF TESTIMONY, SOME OF WHICH



        25  WE DISCUSSED, ABOUT THE SO-CALLED APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO�

                                                           16



         1  ENTRY; CORRECT?



         2  A.   YES.



         3  Q.   AND YOUR TESTIMONY, I BELIEVE, HAS BEEN THAT THAT



         4  APPLICATION BARRIERS TO ENTRY IS FUNDAMENTALLY DRIVEN BY



         5  MARKET SHARE; IS THAT RIGHT?



         6  A.   IT'S DRIVEN, AND IT'S--YES.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S ASSUME THAT THIS IS ACTUALLY PART OF THE



         8  MARKET, THIS BEING THE MAC OS, AND IT HAS A NINE PERCENT



         9  MARKET SHARE.  HOW MANY APPLICATIONS EXIST FOR THE MAC OS



        10  TODAY?



        11  A.   SEVERAL THOUSAND.



        12  Q.   DOES THE NUMBER 12,000 SOUND ABOUT RIGHT TO YOU?



        13  A.   SOUNDS ABOUT RIGHT, YES.



        14  Q.   MORE THAN ANY OTHER COMPUTER USER WOULD USE; IS THAT



        15  RIGHT?



        16  A.   I CAN'T SAY THAT THERE ARE--CERTAINLY MORE THAN WHAT



        17  I WOULD USE.



        18  Q.   CAN YOU THINK OF ANY APPLICATION THAT DOES NOT



        19  EXIST--EXCUSE ME--FOR WHICH THERE IS SIGNIFICANT DEMAND IN



        20  THE MARKETPLACE THAT DOES NOT EXIST FOR THE MAC OS?



        21  A.   I THINK THERE ARE, OBVIOUSLY, APPLICATIONS FOR THE PC



        22  THAT DO NOT EXIST FOR THE MAC OS.  CAN I THINK OF THEM?



        23  NO.



        24  Q.   MY QUESTION MAY NOT HAVE BEEN CLEAR.  I MEAN THE TYPE



        25  OF APPLICATION, NOT A PARTICULAR BRAND OR MODEL.�
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         1  A.   NO.  I MEAN, THERE ARE A MUCH LARGER NUMBER OF



         2  APPLICATIONS AVAILABLE FOR THE PC PLATFORM THAN THERE ARE



         3  FOR THE MAC PLATFORM.  THERE IS PRESUMABLY A REASON WHY



         4  THERE ARE THOUSANDS AND THOUSANDS MORE APPLICATIONS.



         5  THERE IS A RICHER SET OF APPLICATIONS AVAILABLE FOR THE PC



         6  PLATFORM THAN THERE ARE FOR THE MACINTOSH PLATFORM.



         7           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD LIKE TO OFFER



         8  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1884, AN APPLE PRESS RELEASE FROM



         9  SEPTEMBER 17, 1998, ENTITLED "AVALANCHE OF NEW MAC



        10  SOFTWARE AND PERIPHERALS CONTINUES."



        11           MR. SCHWARTZ:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        12           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 1884 IS ADMITTED.



        13                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1884 WAS



        14                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        15  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        16  Q.   PLEASE TAKE A MOMENT TO LOOK OVER THIS DOCUMENT.



        17  AGAIN, I WOULD LIKE TO FOCUS YOUR ATTENTION, IN



        18  PARTICULAR, ON THE FOURTH PARAGRAPH THAT BEGINS, "IN



        19  TOTAL, 1,032 NEW MACINTOSH PRODUCTS HAVE BEEN ANNOUNCED



        20  SINCE MAY 6."



        21           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



        22  A.   YES.



        23  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN THIS BEFORE?



        24  A.   NO.



        25  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY BASIS TO DISAGREE WITH THE�
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         1  INFORMATION CONVEYED IN THE PARAGRAPH, THE FIRST LINE OF



         2  WHICH I JUST READ TO YOU?



         3  A.   NO.  IT SEEMS TO BE A MACINTOSH--AN APPLE PRESS



         4  RELEASE.  I HAVE NO REASON TO DISPUTE IT.



         5  Q.   AND YOU SEE THERE ARE, BY MY COUNT, 29 SOFTWARE



         6  COMPANIES THAT, ACCORDING TO APPLE, HAD RELEASED NEW



         7  SOFTWARE TITLES FOR MAC BETWEEN MAY 6TH AND SEPTEMBER OF



         8  1998?



         9  A.   I WILL TAKE YOUR WORD THAT THERE ARE 29.



        10  Q.   COUNT THEM, IF YOU WISH.



        11  A.   I HAVE NO WISH TO COUNT THEM.



        12  Q.   WHY ARE THESE COMPANIES CONTINUING TO DEVELOP NEW



        13  SOFTWARE PRODUCTS FOR THE MAC PLATFORM?



        14  A.   PRESUMABLY FOR THE SAME REASON THAT MICROSOFT DOES,



        15  WHICH IS YOU CAN MAKE MONEY; PROFITABLE.



        16  Q.   AND THEY FIND THAT MAC USERS ARE LOYAL TO THE



        17  PLATFORM, TO SOME EXTENT?



        18  A.   I DON'T KNOW HOW TO QUITE ANSWER THAT.  MAC USERS ARE



        19  LOYAL.



        20  Q.   DO YOU KNOW THEIR LEVEL OF THE RESOURCES THAT APPLE



        21  DEVOTES TO CONVINCING APPLICATIONS WRITERS TO DEVELOP



        22  APPLICATIONS FOR THE MAC PLATFORM?



        23  A.   I ASSUME THEY MAKE A CONSIDERABLE EFFORT, AS WE SORT



        24  OF STRESSED HERE REPEATEDLY, WHICH IS AS APPLICATIONS



        25  DEVELOPMENT IS CRITICAL.�
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         1  Q.   YES.  AND DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THAT CRITICAL



         2  ACTIVITY--THAT MAC HAS BEEN RELATIVELY SUCCESSFUL IN THAT



         3  ACTIVITY?



         4  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF I CAN--RELATIVE TO WHAT?  I MEAN, I



         5  ASSUME THEY HAVE BEEN REASONABLY SUCCESSFUL.



         6  Q.   RELATIVE TO WHAT YOU MIGHT EXPECT IF THE APPLICATIONS



         7  BARRIER TO ENTRY WORKED IN THE FASHION SUGGESTED IN YOUR



         8  TESTIMONY, PERHAPS.



         9  A.   THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY THAT WE ARE TALKING



        10  ABOUT IN THE TESTIMONY IS WITHIN THE--WITHIN THE PC



        11  MARKET.  WE--YOU KNOW, THIS IS OUTSIDE OF THE PC MARKET.



        12  APPLE IS--SORRY, GO AHEAD.



        13  Q.   SO, THE APPLICATION BARRIER TO ENTRY DOES NOT APPLY



        14  OUTSIDE OF WHAT YOU CALL THE PC MARKET?



        15  A.   NO.  THE ATTRACTIVENESS OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM WILL



        16  DEPEND ON THE NUMBER AND VARIETY OF APPLICATIONS SUCH THAT



        17  ARE AVAILABLE.



        18  Q.   HOW MANY OF THE COMPANIES ON THE SCREEN WRITE



        19  SOFTWARE TITLES TODAY FOR THE WINDOWS PLATFORM, SIR?



        20  A.   I DON'T KNOW.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  ANY OF THEM LOOK FAMILIAR TO YOU?



        22  A.   NEW MACINTOSH PRODUCTS, ADOBE, BRODERBUND, DISNEY.  I



        23  MEAN, HAVE I SEEN THESE NAMES BEFORE?  I HAVE SEEN SOME OF



        24  THEM, YES.



        25  Q.   HAVE YOU DONE ANY STUDY TO SEE THE RATE OF GROWTH IN�
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         1  APPLICATIONS FOR THE WINDOWS PLATFORM VERSUS THE MACINTOSH



         2  PLATFORM VERSUS VARIOUS FLAVORS OF THE UNIX OPERATING



         3  SYSTEM?



         4  A.   NO.



         5  Q.   AND YOU TESTIFIED BEFORE LUNCH THAT YOU HADN'T TRIED



         6  TO TRACK THE DEVELOPMENT OF THESE CROSS-PLATFORM



         7  APPLICATIONS IN JAVA ABOUT WHICH YOU TESTIFIED AT SOME



         8  LENGTH; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         9  A.   THAT'S RIGHT.  I DON'T HAVE ANY SPECIFIC DATA ON THE



        10  NUMBER OF APPLICATIONS.



        11  Q.   OKAY.  SO, THIS IS JUST BASICALLY A THEORY THAT YOU



        12  HAVE NOT TRIED TO TEST BY LOOKING FOR ANY QUANTITATIVE



        13  SUPPORT; IS THAT CORRECT?



        14  A.   NO, THIS IS--WELL, I'M NOT SURE HOW TO ANSWER THAT



        15  QUESTION.



        16  Q.   YOU'RE INCAPABLE OF ANSWERING THAT QUESTION?



        17  A.   ARE YOU SAYING TO ME THAT THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO



        18  ENTRY IS THE THEORY WITHOUT ANY SUPPORT?



        19           IF NOTHING ELSE, THE MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS ARE FULL



        20  OF DISCUSSIONS ABOUT THE NEED TO HAVE APPLICATIONS



        21  AND--THE CRITICAL IMPORTANCE OF APPLICATIONS.  I JUST



        22  DON'T THINK THAT'S PARTICULARLY DISPUTED BY ANYBODY.



        23  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S TALK ABOUT--YOU MENTIONED OS/2 AS AN



        24  EXAMPLE OF THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY BEFORE LUNCH.



        25  DO YOU RECALL THAT?�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   DID YOU READ THE TESTIMONY OF MR. SOYRING ON IBM'S



         3  EFFORTS TO CONVINCE DEVELOPERS TO WRITE TO THE OS/2



         4  OPERATING SYSTEM?



         5  A.   I THINK I READ THE DIRECT TESTIMONY, ALTHOUGH A



         6  LITTLE WHILE AGO.



         7  Q.   DO YOU RECALL MR. SOYRING'S TESTIMONY ON



         8  CROSS-EXAMINATION, I BELIEVE, WHILE YOU WERE IN THE



         9  COURTROOM THAT APPLICATIONS DEVELOPERS DID NOT WANT TO



        10  WRITE TO OS/2 BECAUSE IT DID NOT--OS/2 DID NOT SUPPORT



        11  SOMETHING CALLED THE OLE 2 TECHNOLOGY?



        12  A.   NO.



        13  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO OLE 2 TECHNOLOGY IS?



        14  A.   OLE 2?



        15  Q.   YES, O-L-E AND THEN THE NUMBER TWO.



        16  A.   NO.



        17  Q.   THEN, I GUESS YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND OLE 2 TO REFER TO



        18  A TECHNOLOGY BY WHICH YOU CAN EMBED IN ONE APPLICATION



        19  DOCUMENTS OR INFORMATION THAT COME FROM ANOTHER



        20  APPLICATION?



        21  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        22  Q.   SO, YOU DON'T KNOW THAT OS/2 DID NOT SUPPORT THAT



        23  KIND OF TECHNOLOGY WHEN IT WAS FIRST RELEASED INTO THE



        24  MARKETPLACE, DO YOU?



        25  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.�
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         1  Q.   AND YOU DON'T KNOW THE RELEVANCE OF TECHNICAL



         2  DEFICIENCIES IN OS/2 OR OS/2'S API SET, WHAT RELEVANCE



         3  THOSE SORTS OF FACTORS WOULD HAVE PLAYED IN THE RELUCTANCE



         4  OF APPLICATIONS DEVELOPERS TO WRITE APPLICATIONS TO OS/2,



         5  DO YOU, SIR?



         6  A.   I CAN'T SPEAK AS TO THE PARTICULAR REASONS WHY



         7  APPLICATIONS DEVELOPERS DID NOT WRITE--PORT AS MANY



         8  APPLICATIONS TO OS/2.  WHAT I CAN SPEAK TO IS THE



         9  MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS WHICH DISCUSS THE ROLE OF APPLICATIONS



        10  IN THE LIKELY SUCCESS OF OS/2.



        11           AND THE CONCLUSION, IN PARTICULAR, BY, I BELIEVE



        12  IT WAS, BRAD CHASE IN THE DOCUMENT WHICH I DO REFER TO, IN



        13  WHICH MR. CHASE SAYS, BASICALLY, THAT ONCE IBM ANNOUNCED



        14  OR DECIDED THAT OS/2 WOULD NO LONGER SUPPORT OR WOULD NOT



        15  SUPPORT WINDOWS 95 APPLICATIONS--AND THOSE APPLICATIONS



        16  ARE WRITTEN FOR WINDOWS 95--THAT THE ONLY APPLICATIONS



        17  THAT WOULD BE AVAILABLE FOR AN OS/2 USER WOULD BE--AND I



        18  THINK I CAN MORE OR LESS QUOTE--A FEW NATIVE APPLICATIONS,



        19  PLUS THE APPLICATIONS WRITTEN FOR 16-BIT.  AND SINCE WITH



        20  THE INTRODUCTION OF WINDOWS 95, NONE OF THOSE WOULD BE



        21  IMPROVED.



        22           AND HIS FINAL CONCLUSION, AS I RECALL, WAS GIVEN



        23  THAT SET OF APPLICATIONS, HE SAID, ANY OS/2 USERS HAS



        24  THE--THE PROSPECT FOR OS/2 USERS IS LIKE THE PROSPECT OF



        25  SOMEBODY ON A STEADY DIET OF STALE BREAD.�
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         1           THE POINT I'M TRYING TO MAKE IS THAT FOR WHATEVER



         2  REASON, THE AVAILABILITY OR NONAVAILABILITY OF WINDOWS



         3  APPLICATIONS FOR THE OS/2 WAS THE CRITICAL ELEMENT AND, IF



         4  YOU WILL LIKE, THE LACK OF SUCCESS OF OS/2.  THAT WAS THE



         5  POINT I WAS TRYING TO MAKE.



         6  Q.   WITH ALL DEFERENCE TO MR. CHASE AND MICROSOFT



         7  DOCUMENTS, DON'T YOU UNDERSTAND HIM TO BE PICKING UP THE



         8  STORY OF OS/2 IN THE MIDDLE OF THE STORY AND NOT THE



         9  BEGINNING?



        10  A.   MR. CHASE IS PICKING UP IN THE MIDDLE?



        11  Q.   YES.



        12           ISN'T THE REASON WHY OS/2 WOULD NOT SUPPORT



        13  WINDOWS 95 APPLICATIONS IS BECAUSE IBM MADE A BUSINESS



        14  DECISION NOT TO SPEND THE MONEY TO CLONE THE WINDOWS 95



        15  API SET?



        16  A.   AND I THINK WHAT THAT SPEAKS TO IS THE COST OF THAT



        17  KIND OF STRATEGY, THE ENORMOUS COST TO THAT STRATEGY,



        18  WHICH IS THE BARRIER TO ENTRY.



        19           I THINK AS WE DISCUSSED BEFORE, IT IS ENORMOUSLY



        20  EXPENSIVE TO TRY TO DEVELOP AN OPERATING SYSTEM THAT HAS



        21  THE SAME SET OF API'S AS WINDOWS.  OS/2 GAVE UP ON THAT.



        22  PEOPLE TESTIFIED THAT IT'S SIMPLY--THE AMOUNT OF MONEY



        23  INVOLVED SIMPLY WOULD NOT BE WORTH IT AS A BUSINESS



        24  DECISION.



        25  Q.   AND ISN'T THAT BECAUSE IBM HAD NOT DEVELOPED�
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         1  TECHNOLOGIES THAT APPLICATIONS WRITERS LIKED AS MUCH AS



         2  THE CAPABILITIES OF WINDOWS, SO THE APPLICATIONS WRITERS



         3  SAID, "YOU HAVE A CHOICE:  EITHER DEVELOP THEM ON YOUR OWN



         4  OR CLONE THE WINDOWS API'S," AND IBM CHOOSE TO DO NEITHER;



         5  ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



         6  A.   THAT I CANNOT SPEAK TO.



         7           MY ONLY POINT IS THAT THE UNAVAILABILITY OF THOSE



         8  APPLICATIONS WAS WHAT WAS ABSOLUTELY CRUCIAL TO THE



         9  SUCCESS OR FAILURE OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM.



        10  Q.   SO, TECHNICAL STEPS TAKEN OR TECHNICAL MISTAKES MADE



        11  BY IBM THAT LED TO THAT UNAVAILABILITY ARE SOMETHING YOU



        12  DON'T KNOW ABOUT AND YOU DON'T REGARD AS RELEVANT; IS THAT



        13  CORRECT?



        14  A.   I CAN'T GIVE YOU AN OPINION AS TO WHETHER OR NOT, YOU



        15  KNOW, EVERY DECISION THAT IBM MADE WAS RIGHT OR WRONG AND



        16  HOW EFFICIENT THEY WERE.  YOU PRESUMABLY HAD MR. SOYRING



        17  ON THE STAND FOR SEVERAL DAYS ON THAT ISSUE.



        18           MR. LACOVARA:  MAY I HAVE EXHIBIT 711 BACK,



        19  PLEASE.



        20  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        21  Q.   IF I READ THIS DOCUMENT CORRECTLY, NETSCAPE'S RUN



        22  RATE DECLINES BY APPROXIMATELY 13 PERCENT OVER THE COURSE



        23  OF FOUR YEARS, NAMELY 1998 TO 2001; IS THAT RIGHT?



        24  A.   THAT'S FOR THE UNITED STATES, YEP.



        25  Q.   AND YOUR TESTIMONY, I BELIEVE, IS THAT UNTIL THE�
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         1  RELEASE OF THE IE 3 TECHNOLOGIES IN THE SECOND HALF OF



         2  1996, MICROSOFT DID NOT HAVE WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE OF A



         3  QUALITY THAT IS, IN YOUR OPINION, COMPARABLE TO THAT OF



         4  NETSCAPE'S SOFTWARE IN THE MARKET; IS THAT CORRECT?



         5  A.   I'M SORRY.  WHERE ARE WE?  ARE YOU REFERRING TO



         6  ANYTHING IN PARTICULAR IN THE TESTIMONY?



         7  Q.   I WILL BREAK IT UP.



         8           YOU ARE OF THE VIEW--KNOW WHAT THE IE 3



         9  TECHNOLOGIES ARE?



        10  A.   IE 3, YES.



        11  Q.   AND YOU UNDERSTAND IE 3 TO BE INTRODUCED AS PART OF A



        12  WINDOWS 95 SERVICE RELEASE IN THE SECOND HALF OF 1996;



        13  CORRECT?



        14  A.   THAT SOUNDS RIGHT.



        15  Q.   AND I BELIEVE IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY THAT UNTIL IE 3,



        16  MICROSOFT'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE WAS NOT OF A QUALITY



        17  COMPARABLE TO THAT OF NETSCAPE'S; IS THAT YOUR OPINION,



        18  SIR?



        19  A.   THAT'S MY GENERAL UNDERSTANDING, YES.



        20  Q.   OKAY.  SO, YOU WOULD AGREE THAT MICROSOFT WAS PLAYING



        21  CATCHUP TO NETSCAPE ON THE QUALITY FRONT; CORRECT?



        22  A.   UNTIL IE 3?



        23  Q.   YES, SIR.



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   AND SO YOU'RE NOT SURPRISED THAT IN 1996, BEFORE IE 3�
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         1  WAS RELEASED, MICROSOFT HAD A RUN RATE OF, ACCORDING TO



         2  THIS CHART ANYWAY, SIX PERCENT?



         3  A.   THAT DOESN'T SHOW IE'S RUN RATE.  THAT'S THE--ONCE



         4  AGAIN, WE HAVE BEEN AROUND THIS BEFORE.  THAT IS THE STOCK



         5  THAT YOU'RE LOOKING AT UP THERE.



         6  Q.   THE NUMBER OF USERS?



         7  A.   YES.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE RUN RATE WAS.



         8  Q.   EVEN BETTER.  MICROSOFT HAD SIX PERCENT OF THE USERS



         9  IN 1996?



        10  A.   CORRECT.



        11  Q.   BY THE WAY, IT SAYS NETSCAPE THERE HAS 57 PERCENT IN



        12  1996.



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR TESTIMONY?



        15  A.   I THINK THAT--THAT THAT DOES NOT INCLUDE--WELL, THAT



        16  DOES NOT INCLUDE AOL.



        17           THE MICROSOFT DATA COLLECTION TENDS TO SEPARATE



        18  OUT AOL SEPARATELY--WELL...



        19  Q.   IN 1996, MICROSOFT WAS NOT SUPPLYING THE BROWSER



        20  TECHNOLOGY TO AOL, WAS IT, SIR?



        21  A.   NO.



        22  Q.   SO SIX--



        23  A.   GO AHEAD.



        24  Q.   IT HAD SIX PERCENT, AND NETSCAPE HAD 57 PERCENT;



        25  CORRECT?�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   OKAY.  WHAT'S THE MARGINAL PERCENTAGE?  WHERE DOES



         3  THAT COME FROM, OR 37 PERCENT?



         4  A.   IN OTHER WORDS, WHAT IS THE OTHER BROWSER?



         5  Q.   YES.



         6  A.   THAT'S IN MICROSOFT'S OWN MODEL.  BACK IN '96,



         7  PROBABLY BOOKLINK, OTHER COLLECTIONS OF BROWSERS.  THERE



         8  ARE QUITE A FEW OUT THERE, OR THERE WERE.



         9  Q.   NOW, FOCUSING ON MICROSOFT, YOU WOULD EXPECT



        10  MICROSOFT'S STOCK MEASURE TO INCREASE AFTER IT INTRODUCED



        11  BROWSING SOFTWARE COMPARABLE IN QUALITY TO NETSCAPE'S,



        12  WOULD YOU NOT?



        13  A.   ALL ELSE BEING EQUAL, YES.



        14  Q.   COMPLETELY LEVEL PLAYING FIELD AS YOU WOULD DEFINE



        15  IT, YOU WOULD EXPECT MICROSOFT TO GAIN SHARE AT NETSCAPE'S



        16  EXPENSE, WOULD YOU NOT?



        17  A.   ONLY IF THEY INTRODUCED A BROWSER WHICH WAS BETTER.



        18  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU UNDERSTAND THAT A MAJORITY OF



        19  REVIEWERS HAD CONCLUDED THAT THE IE 4 TECHNOLOGIES MAKE



        20  MICROSOFT'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE BETTER THAN NETSCAPE'S?



        21  A.   I HAVE HEARD MICROSOFT STATING THAT, YES.



        22  Q.   AND ACCORDING TO THIS NETSCAPE'S STOCK MEASURE GOES



        23  FROM 57 PERCENT IN THE YEAR IN WHICH IT FACED NO



        24  COMPETITION FROM MICROSOFT IN TERMS OF QUALITY, TO 38



        25  PERCENT, SIX YEARS LATER, WHEN IT'S HAD SIX YEARS OF�
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         1  ROUGHLY COMPARABLE PRODUCT WITH WHICH TO COMPETE IN THE



         2  MARKETPLACE; DO I READ THAT CORRECT?



         3  A.   CAN YOU TRY THAT AGAIN.



         4  Q.   NETSCAPE'S STOCK STARTS AT 57 PERCENT; CORRECT?



         5  A.   OKAY, '96, YES.



         6  Q.   LEFT MARGIN.



         7           AND THAT'S IN A YEAR WHEN, BASED ON YOUR OWN



         8  TESTIMONY, MICROSOFT'S TECHNOLOGY WAS NOT AS GOOD AS



         9  NETSCAPE'S; CORRECT?



        10  A.   YES.



        11  Q.   AND WE GO OUT SIX YEARS--COUNT ACROSS--TO THE END OF



        12  THE FISCAL YEAR 2001, NETSCAPE HAS A STOCK MEASURE OF 38



        13  PERCENT; CORRECT?



        14  A.   YES.



        15  Q.   IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT A LOSS OF 19 PERCENTAGE



        16  POINTS IN THE FIRST SIX YEARS IN WHICH A COMPANY FACES



        17  COMPETITION FROM A PRODUCT OF COMPARABLE OR, INDEED,



        18  SUPERIOR QUALITY, IS MORE INDICATIVE OF ANTICOMPETITIVE



        19  CONDUCT THAN IT IS OF WHAT SOME OF US MIGHT CALL "PLAIN



        20  OLD COMPETITION"?



        21  A.   NO.  WE ARE LOOKING AT THE PERIOD--WE ARE LOOKING AT



        22  A VERY, VERY RAPID GROWTH OF MICROSOFT'S SHARE, AND THE



        23  ISSUE IS, WHY DID IT GROW?



        24           THIS MODEL HAS HIGH RUN RATES ASSUMED IN IT FOR



        25  MICROSOFT AND, THEREFORE, GENERATES AN INCREASE IN THE�
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         1  STOCK.  AND THE ISSUE, OF COURSE, IS WHY WAS THE RUN RATE



         2  AS HIGH AS IT IS--WHY DOES IT RUN AS HIGH AS IT IS IN THIS



         3  MODEL?  AND THE ISSUE IS, IS IT BECAUSE OF QUALITY CHANGES



         4  OR IS IT BECAUSE OF WHAT MICROSOFT CONTRACTS WAS ENTERING



         5  INTO THE MARKET, AND YOU USUALLY CAN'T TELL THAT FROM



         6  THIS.



         7  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU, WITHOUT LOOKING AT THIS DOCUMENT,



         8  NECESSARILY, WHAT WOULD YOU EXPECT MICROSOFT'S SHARE OF



         9  THE MARKET, AS YOU DEFINE IT TO BE TODAY, IF IT HAD NOT



        10  ENGAGED IN ANY OF THE CONDUCT THAT YOU DEEMED



        11  ANTICOMPETITIVE?  AND YOU MAY EITHER PICK A STOCK MEASURE



        12  OR A FLOW MEASURE.



        13  A.   WELL, THE BEST ESTIMATE OF THAT THAT WE WOULD HAVE



        14  WOULD BE BY LOOKING AT MARKETS IN WHICH MICROSOFT'S



        15  ACTIONS WERE LEAST EXCLUSIVE.



        16           AS I BELIEVE THE TESTIMONY GOES THROUGH, ONE OF



        17  THE WAYS THAT YOU CAN APPROACH ANSWERING THE QUESTION THAT



        18  YOU JUST ASKED, IS TO LOOK AT DIFFERENT ISP'S AND OS USERS



        19  AND ASK THE QUESTION, "WHAT SHARE OF THE MARKET DOES



        20  MICROSOFT HAVE WHEN IT USES MORE OR LESS EXCLUSIVE



        21  CONTRACTS?"



        22           ONE OF THE THINGS THAT THE REPORT TRIES TO DO IS



        23  TO ANSWER THAT QUESTION BY LOOKING AT MICROSOFT'S SHARE



        24  WITH AOL USERS, ALL ISP USERS, AND A SUBSET OR CONTROL OF



        25  ISP'S WHICH ARE CALLED "PARITY ISP'S."  THAT GROUP, OVER�
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         1  THIS PERIOD OR ROUGHLY OVER THIS PERIOD, WENT FROM 20



         2  PERCENT TO ABOUT 30 PERCENT.



         3           SO, TO THE EXTENT WE WERE ABLE TO ANSWER THE



         4  QUESTION YOU JUST ASKED, WHICH IS, AS I UNDERSTAND IT,



         5  WHAT WOULD MICROSOFT'S SHARE HAVE REACHED ABSENT EXCLUSIVE



         6  CONTRACTS, THE BEST EVIDENCE THAT WE HAVE IS THAT IF YOU



         7  SIMPLY EXCLUDED THE ISP CONTRACTS, MICROSOFT'S SHARE WOULD



         8  HAVE REACHED ABOUT 30 PERCENT.



         9  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOUR BASIS--INDEED, YOUR ONLY BASIS--FOR



        10  THAT CONCLUSION IS THE ADKNOWLEDGE DATA TO WHICH YOU HAVE



        11  REFERRED TODAY; IS THAT CORRECT?



        12  A.   FOR THAT SPECIFIC CONCLUSION?



        13  Q.   YES.



        14  A.   THAT'S BASED ON THE ADKNOWLEDGE DATA, YES.



        15  Q.   THANK YOU.  WE ARE DONE.



        16           COULD YOU TURN TO, IF YOU NEED TO, PARAGRAPH



        17  EIGHT OF YOUR TESTIMONY, BUT MY QUESTION IS:  CAN YOU TELL



        18  ME WHAT A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE IS?



        19  A.   A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE IS A PIECE OF SOFTWARE WHICH



        20  ALLOWS AN APPLICATION WHICH IS WRITTEN IN PURE JAVA TO BE



        21  USED ON AN OPERATING SYSTEM FOR WHICH THAT JAVA VIRTUAL



        22  MACHINE HAS BEEN WRITTEN.



        23  Q.   NOW, JAVA IS NOT THE FIRST PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE THAT



        24  REQUIRED A VIRTUAL MACHINE OR MADE USE OF A VIRTUAL



        25  MACHINE, IS IT, SIR?�
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         1  A.   I DON'T KNOW.



         2  Q.   IN FACT, ABOUT A DOZEN OTHER COMPUTING LANGUAGES OVER



         3  THE LAST 30 YEARS HAVE MADE USES OF VIRTUAL MACHINES;



         4  ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         5  A.   I DON'T KNOW.



         6  Q.   CAN YOU NAME ANY OF THOSE?



         7  A.   NO.  THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE IS THE FIRST ONE THAT I



         8  HAVE RUN INTO.



         9  Q.   OKAY.  CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT STUDIES YOU MADE TO



        10  CONCLUDE THAT JAVA IS ANYMORE LIKELY TO BE SUCCESSFUL AS



        11  THE BASIS FOR CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS THAN ANY OTHER



        12  PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE THAT REQUIRED A VIRTUAL MACHINE OR



        13  OTHER MEANS TO RUN AN APPLICATION OTHER THAN A NATIVE



        14  BASIS?



        15  A.   JAVA APPEARS TO BE THE ONLY ONE THAT MICROSOFT SEES



        16  AS A SERIOUS THREAT TO ITS OPERATING SYSTEM MONOPOLY.



        17  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU GO BACK TO LOOK SORT OF IN THE



        18  PRE-JAVA WORLD TO SEE IF MICROSOFT HARBORED SIMILAR VIEWS



        19  ABOUT OTHER PROGRAMMING LANGUAGES?



        20  A.   MICROSOFT HAS HAD CONCERN OVER TIME FOR--WITH RESPECT



        21  TO DR-DOS AND WITH RESPECT TO OS/2.



        22  Q.   THE QUESTION, SIR, WAS ABOUT PROGRAMMING LANGUAGES,



        23  AND NEITHER OF THOSE IS A PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE.



        24  A.   OH, I'M SORRY.  I MISSPOKE.



        25           HAVE I GONE BACK AND--DO YOU WANT TO REPEAT THE�
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         1  QUESTION SINCE, CLEARLY, I MISUNDERSTOOD.



         2  Q.   HAVE YOU GONE BACK TO SEE WHETHER MICROSOFT'S, AS YOU



         3  SAY, CONCERNS ABOUT JAVA WERE DIFFERENT, IN KIND, THAN ITS



         4  CONCERNS ABOUT ANY OTHER PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE THAT



         5  REQUIRED THE USE OF A VIRTUAL MACHINE TO RUN APPLICATIONS?



         6  A.   NO.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  LOOKING AT PARAGRAPH NINE OF YOUR REPORT, I



         8  JUST HAVE YOUR DEFINITION OF WHAT YOU CALL AN INTERNET WEB



         9  BROWSER.



        10  A.   YES.  AN INTERNET WEB BROWSER IS A SOFTWARE OR



        11  SOFTWARE APPLICATION THAT ALLOWS THE USER TO SEARCH FOR



        12  MATERIAL AND RETRIEVE INFORMATION ON THE WEB.



        13  Q.   NOW, IS AN INTERNET WEB BROWSER DIFFERENT FROM OTHER



        14  KIND OF BROWSERS?



        15           THE COURT:  IS A WHAT?



        16           MR. LACOVARA:  DIFFERENT KINDS OF BROWSERS.



        17           THE COURT:  IS A WHAT DIFFERENT?



        18           MR. LACOVARA:  AN INTERNET WEB BROWSER AS HE USES



        19  THE TERM, YOUR HONOR.



        20           THE WITNESS:  NO, I'M JUST USING THE TERM HERE AS



        21  INTERNET BROWSER--BROWSER.



        22           YOU CAN USE A BROWSER TO BROWSE THE INTERNET.



        23  YOU CAN USE A BROWSER TO BROWSE AN INTRANET.



        24  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        25  Q.   NOW, CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT PROTOCOLS OR RENDERING�
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         1  LANGUAGES A BROWSER MUST SUPPORT IN ORDER TO BE A BROWSER



         2  UNDER YOUR DEFINITION?



         3  A.   I THINK THE SHORT ANSWER IS A TCPIP PROTOCOLS.



         4  Q.   THAT'S PROTOCOL.  WHAT ABOUT RENDERING LANGUAGES?



         5  A.   NO.



         6  Q.   CAN YOU NAME ANY RENDERING LANGUAGES?



         7  A.   NO.



         8  Q.   DOES A BROWSER HAVE TO HAVE AN HTML RENDERING ENGINE



         9  TO BE A BROWSER UNDER YOUR DEFINITION?



        10  A.   YES.



        11  Q.   ANYTHING ELSE?



        12  A.   NOT THAT I CAN THINK OF.



        13  Q.   HAVE YOU DONE ANY STUDY TO ACTUALLY SEE WHAT'S IN



        14  THESE THINGS YOU CALL BROWSERS?



        15  A.   NO.  I'M NOT A--THAT'S NOT MY AREA OF EXPERTISE.



        16  Q.   SO, DOES NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE HAVE TCPIP



        17  SUPPORT?



        18  A.   YES, ALTHOUGH TCPIP SUPPORT IS, GENERALLY SPEAKING,



        19  IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM AS WELL.  I DON'T KNOW.  I ASSUME



        20  THEY CARRIED--YES, IT SHOULD BE IN BOTH.



        21  Q.   SHOULD BE IN BOTH.  MY QUESTION IS A QUESTION OF



        22  MATTER OF FACT.



        23           DOES COMMUNICATOR 4 HAVE A TCPIP STACK, SIR?



        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF IT DOES ANYMORE.  IT MAY RELY ON



        25  TCPIP STACK IN THE OPERATING SYSTEM.�
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         1  Q.   DOES IT MAKE A DIFFERENCE IN TERMS OF THE DEFINITION



         2  OF WHAT A BROWSER IS, AS YOU SAY, IT MAY NOT ANYMORE?



         3  A.   NO.



         4  Q.   IS THERE A PRINCIPAL REASON WHY AN OPERATING SYSTEM,



         5  UNDER YOUR DEFINITION OF OPERATING SYSTEM OR BROWSER, CAN



         6  INCLUDE AN HTML RENDERING ENGINE?



         7  A.   I'M SORRY?  IS THERE A WHAT.



         8  Q.   A PRINCIPAL REASON WHY AN OPERATING SYSTEM CAN'T



         9  INCLUDE AN HTML RENDERING ENGINE?



        10  A.   IS THERE A REASON IN PRINCIPLE?  IT CERTAINLY COULD



        11  BE PART OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM PRODUCT.



        12  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, IN PARAGRAPH NINE YOU SAY, "BROWSERS CAN



        13  SERVE AS A PLATFORM TO WHICH APPLICATION DEVELOPERS



        14  WRITE."



        15           CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT YOU MEAN BY THAT SENTENCE.



        16  A.   WHAT I MEAN BY THAT IS BROWSERS, LIKE OPERATING



        17  SYSTEMS, HAVE A SET OF API'S, AND THAT CERTAIN



        18  APPLICATIONS MAY BE ABLE TO USE THOSE API'S.  THOSE



        19  APPLICATIONS ARE WRITTEN TO THAT SET OF API'S.



        20  Q.   OKAY.  AND THE BROWSER DOES NOT ACTUALLY RUN THE



        21  APPLICATION ITSELF; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        22  A.   EXCEPT FOR PLUG-INS.



        23  Q.   EXCEPT FOR PLUG-INS?



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   AND YOU DON'T CALL PLUG-INS APPLICATIONS, DO YOU,�
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         1  SIR?



         2  A.   CAN YOU DISTINGUISH BETWEEN AN APPLICATION AND A



         3  PLUG-IN.



         4  Q.   AND YOU DO?



         5  A.   WHEN APPROPRIATE, YES.



         6  Q.   OKAY.  HOW DOES THE BROWSER, THEN, ACTUALLY RUN AN



         7  APPLICATION, EVEN IF IT EXPOSES THE API TO THE APPLICATION



         8  ABOVE?



         9  A.   THE BROWSER, PRESUMABLY, WOULD RUN AN APPLICATION



        10  THROUGH THE JVM INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM.



        11  Q.   AND IT WOULD MAKE CALLS ON API'S IN THE OPERATING



        12  SYSTEM IN ORDER TO RUN THE APPLICATION; IS THAT CORRECT?



        13  A.   THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING.



        14  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT A CAFFEINE MARK?



        15  A.   A CAFFEINE MARK?



        16  Q.   CAFFEINE MARK.



        17  A.   NO.  NOT ANYTHING TO DO WITH SOFTWARE.



        18  Q.   EVERYTHING IN THE JAVA WORLD HAS A COFFEE REFERENCE.



        19  A CAFFEINE MARK, I WILL REPRESENT TO YOU, IS A MEASURE OF



        20  THE SPEED OF A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE.



        21           DOES THAT REFRESH YOUR RECOLLECTION?



        22  A.   NO, BUT I WILL TAKE YOUR...



        23  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU KNOW WHAT IT MEANS TO MEASURE THE SPEED



        24  OF A JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE?



        25  A.   I ASSUME IT'S THE SPEED WITH WHICH IT PROCESSES�
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         1  INSTRUCTIONS.



         2  Q.   OR LAUNCHES APPLICATIONS?



         3  A.   YES.



         4  Q.   AND YOU UNDERSTAND THERE IS NOT JUST ONE JAVA VIRTUAL



         5  MACHINE IN THE WORLD; CORRECT?



         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



         7  Q.   AND THERE USED TO BE IN NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING



         8  SOFTWARE; CORRECT?



         9  A.   WELL, THERE STILL IS IN MINE.  I GATHER IN



        10  NETSCAPE 5--I'M NOT SURE WHAT NETSCAPE IS DOING WITH 5.0.



        11  Q.   OKAY.  AND WINDOWS 98?



        12  A.   THERE IS ONE IN THE WINDOWS 98 PRODUCT, YES.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  DID YOU REVIEW ANY FIGURES TO SEE WHOSE JAVA



        14  VIRTUAL MACHINE IS FASTEST OR FASTER THAN OTHERS?



        15  A.   BETWEEN WHOM?



        16  Q.   ANY.



        17  A.   NO.



        18  Q.   DID YOU HEAR MR. SOYRING'S TESTIMONY THAT LOTUS, A



        19  SUBSIDIARY OF IBM, DID SOME TESTS AND FOUND THAT



        20  NETSCAPE'S JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE WAS ABOUT ONE-THIRD OF THE



        21  SPEED OF THE ONE IN WINDOWS?



        22  A.   NO.



        23  Q.   DOES THAT COMPORT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING, OR DO YOU



        24  HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING OF THE SUBJECT?



        25  A.   I HAVE NO UNDERSTANDING ON THE SUBJECT AT ALL.�
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         1  Q.   OKAY, BUT YOU DO HAVE THE UNDERSTANDING, AS WE



         2  ESTABLISHED BEFORE LUNCH, THAT THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE IN



         3  WINDOWS WILL RUN AN APPLICATION WRITTEN IN JAVA; IS THAT



         4  CORRECT?



         5  A.   YES.



         6  Q.   AND YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THE WAY THAT JAVA



         7  APPLICATION WORKS IS I WRITE AN APPLICATION IN JAVA, AND I



         8  CAN RUN IT ON WINDOWS IF IT HAS A JVM, I CAN RUN IT ON



         9  NETSCAPE'S SOFTWARE IF IT HAS A JVM, I CAN RUN IT SUN



        10  SOLARIS IF IT HAS A JVM, AND ANY OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM OR



        11  MIDDLEWARE PACKAGE THAT HAS A JVM; CORRECT?



        12  A.   IF IT'S WRITTEN IN--I THINK IT'S ACTUALLY, WHEN I



        13  SAID "YES," I WAS HESITATING.  IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING, AND



        14  OBVIOUSLY MR. SOYRING IS--OR THE TECHNICAL PEOPLE



        15  FROM--EXPERTS ARE BETTER AT THIS, BUT IT IS MY



        16  UNDERSTANDING THAT IF AN APPLICATION IS WRITTEN IN PURE



        17  JAVA, IT WILL RUN ON ANY ONE OF THOSE OPERATING SYSTEMS.



        18  HOWEVER, IF THE APPLICATION DOES NOT USE PURE JAVA, IT MAY



        19  WELL NOT RUN OR NOT RUN AS WELL ON OTHER OPERATING



        20  SYSTEMS.



        21  Q.   WELL, IF THAT'S TRUE, WHY ISN'T EVERY APPLICATION



        22  TODAY WRITTEN IN HUNDRED PERCENT PURE JAVA IF IT ISN'T THE



        23  TRUTH, AS YOU SAY, THAT I CAN WRITE AN APPLICATION IN JAVA



        24  AND KNOW IT WILL RUN ON WINDOWS, WHICH YOU SAY IS 90



        25  PERCENT OF ALL WHAT YOU CALL THE PC'S AS WELL AS EVERY�
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         1  OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM, SO I WRITE ONCE AND GET A HUNDRED



         2  PERCENT OF THE MARKET?



         3  A.   IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THE MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGIES



         4  THAT ARE OFFERED TO PEOPLE WRITING IN APPLICATIONS TO USE



         5  JDIRECT, WHAT MICROSOFT HAS DEVELOPED IS A SET OF



         6  TECHNOLOGIES SUCH THAT IF YOU ARE WRITING IN JAVA AND YOU



         7  ARE WRITING EXCLUSIVELY TO THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM,



         8  THAT THEY PROVIDE A SET OF TECHNOLOGIES WHICH ALLOW THE



         9  APPLICATIONS WRITER TO INCREASE THE SPEED OF HIS



        10  APPLICATION.  AND HENCE, THE NAME JDIRECT, WHICH IS THAT



        11  IF YOU'RE WRITING IN JAVA, INSTEAD OF GOING THROUGH THE



        12  JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE, YOU CAN GO DIRECTLY TO THE OPERATING



        13  SYSTEM, SO THAT THE TECHNOLOGIES THAT MICROSOFT HAS



        14  DEVELOPED AND OFFERED TO APPLICATIONS WRITERS WRITING IN



        15  JAVA ARE A SET OF APPLICATIONS WHICH ARE INTENDED TO MAKE



        16  THAT APPLICATION RUN BETTER OR FASTER WHEN IT IS RUN JUST



        17  ON WINDOWS.



        18           SO, IN THAT SENSE, IT IS A NONCROSS-PLATFORM



        19  APPLICATION.



        20  Q.   SO, WHAT'S THE ANSWER TO MY QUESTION?



        21  A.   THAT WAS THE ANSWER TO THE QUESTION.



        22  Q.   WHY AREN'T PEOPLE WRITING TO JAVA, HUNDRED PERCENT



        23  PURE JAVA TODAY?  IS YOUR ANSWER BECAUSE IT'S SLOWER THAN



        24  WRITING IN A PLATFORM-SPECIFIC LANGUAGE?



        25  A.   WHAT I'M SAYING IS THAT SOME PEOPLE ARE WRITING IN�
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         1  PURE JAVA, SOME PEOPLE ARE USING JDIRECT.  THE PEOPLE WHO



         2  ARE USING, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, PARTICULARLY LIKE USING



         3  JDIRECT ARE PEOPLE WHO, FOR WHATEVER REASON, BELIEVE THAT



         4  ALL OR NEARLY ALL OF THEIR RELEVANT MARKET IS USING



         5  WINDOWS.  THAT WOULD BE PARTICULARLY TRUE IN BUSINESSES.



         6  THAT'S THE REASON FOR USING TECHNOLOGIES LIKE JDIRECT.



         7  Q.   OF COURSE, IT ENHANCES THE PERFORMANCE OF THE



         8  APPLICATION ON THE WINDOWS PLATFORM; CORRECT?



         9  A.   WELL, IT ENHANCES THE--AS I UNDERSTAND IT, IT SPEEDS



        10  UP ON A WINDOWS PLATFORM, BUT MAY ALSO, OF COURSE--IT MAY



        11  SPEED YOU UP ON A WINDOWS PLATFORM, BUT IT DRAMATICALLY



        12  REDUCES YOUR SPEED ON A NON-WINDOWS PLATFORM.  IT MAY NOT



        13  SIMPLY RUN ON A NON-WINDOWS PLATFORM.  SO YOU HAVE,



        14  BASICALLY, A CHOICE.  IF YOU USE JDIRECT, YOU GET



        15  SOMETHING OF AN ADVANTAGE IF YOU'RE ON A WINDOW--IF YOUR



        16  USER IS ON A WINDOWS PLATFORM, BUT YOUR APPLICATION WON'T



        17  RUN ANYMORE ON A NON-WINDOWS PLATFORM.  AND AS LONG AS THE



        18  WINDOWS SHARE ON THE MARKET IS VERY, VERY LARGE, THAT



        19  BECOMES AN ATTRACTIVE PROPOSITION FOR INDIVIDUAL WRITERS



        20  OF APPLICATIONS.



        21           IT IS A "FIGHT THEM ON THE BEACHES" STRATEGY.  IT



        22  IS ONE OF THE DEFENSES IF YOU HAVE A VERY, VERY LARGE



        23  MARKET SHARE.  IT'S AN EFFECTIVE WAY TO KEEP THAT MARKET



        24  SHARE TO PROTECT YOURSELF AGAINST ENTRY OF NEW FIRMS.



        25  Q.   IT'S ALSO A WAY TO GIVE 90 PERCENT OF THE USERS OF�
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         1  PC'S IN THE WORLD A FASTER APPLICATION, ISN'T IT?



         2  A.   IF YOU THINK OF IT AS A TROJAN HORSE, ANY INDIVIDUAL



         3  APPLICATIONS WRITER LOOKS AT THE MARKET FOR OPERATING



         4  SYSTEMS, AND HE SAYS, "I'M WRITING TO THE PC PLATFORM.



         5  90, 95 PERCENT OF THE PEOPLE WHO ARE LIKELY TO USE MY



         6  APPLICATION ARE USING WINDOWS; AND THEREFORE, IT'S WORTH



         7  IT FOR ME INDIVIDUALLY TO MAKE A DECISION TO USE JDIRECT."



         8           ON THE OTHER HAND, IF YOU LOOK AT THE INTERESTS



         9  OF APPLICATIONS WRITERS AS A WHOLE, IF THEY ALL DO THAT,



        10  NOBODY WILL WROTE IN CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS.



        11           SO, IT IS A QUANDARY.  WHAT IS IN THE INTERESTS



        12  OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICATION WRITERS TO DO MAY NOT BE IN THE



        13  INTERESTS OF APPLICATIONS WRITERS AS A GROUP.



        14  Q.   NOW, IN--IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT BROWSER, IN TERMS



        15  OF THE RANGE OF APPLICATIONS FOR WHICH IT CAN SERVE AS A



        16  PLATFORM, IS A COMPLETE SUBSTITUTE FOR WINDOWS?



        17  A.   NO.



        18  Q.   OKAY.  HOW WOULD YOU LIMIT THE SCOPE OF ITS ABILITY



        19  TO SERVE AS A SUBSTITUTE IN TERMS OF A PLATFORM?



        20  A.   IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THE SET OF APPLICATIONS



        21  WHICH LITERALLY CAN BE--FOR WHICH A BROWSER HAS THE API'S



        22  IS A SMALL SUBSET AND NOT PARTICULARLY OVERLAPPING.  I



        23  THINK THERE IS, IN FACT, A REFERENCE IN THE DOCUMENT ON



        24  THAT.



        25  Q.   IN FACT, MR. BARKSDALE TESTIFIED THAT NETSCAPE HAD�
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         1  NEVER MAINTAINED THAT THE BROWSER COULD BE A SUBSTITUTE IN



         2  ANY SERIOUS WAY; ISN'T THAT HIS TESTIMONY?



         3  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO GO BACK AND LOOK AT HIS TESTIMONY.



         4  ARE YOU JUST ASSERTING THAT?



         5  Q.   WHY DON'T I ASK YOU TO LOOK AT PAGE 73 OF THE



         6  TESTIMONY OF MR. BARKSDALE TO THIS COURT ON OCTOBER 20TH



         7  IN THE AFTERNOON, AND I WILL READ INTO THE RECORD WHILE



         8  YOU READ LINES 14 THROUGH 24.



         9           MR. LACOVARA:  BEGINNING AT LINE 14, YOUR HONOR,



        10  (READING):



        11                "QUESTION:  DID YOU BELIEVE IN 1995 THAT IT



        12           WAS POSSIBLE FOR NAVIGATOR TO SERVE AS A



        13           SUBSTITUTE FOR, AT LEAST, THE PLATFORM



        14           CHARACTERISTICS OF WINDOWS?



        15                ANSWER:  NO.



        16                QUESTION:  AND NETSCAPE, AS A COMPANY, DID



        17           NOT HOLD THAT BELIEF?



        18                ANSWER:  WE HAVE ALWAYS BELIEVES, AND WE



        19           STILL BELIEVE, THAT IT CAN SUBSTITUTE FOR SOME OF



        20           THE CHARACTERISTICS, BUT WE HAVE NEVER



        21           MAINTAINED, IN ANY SERIOUS WAY, THAT IT COULD



        22           SUBSTITUTE FOR ALL OF IT."



        23           THE WITNESS:  I'M SORRY, I DIDN'T KNOW WHAT PAGE



        24  YOU WERE ON.



        25  BY MR. LACOVARA:�
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         1  Q.   PAGE 73, LINE 14, OCTOBER 20TH, THE P.M. SESSION,



         2  SIR.



         3           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   DID YOU HAVE A CHANCE TO READ IT?



         6  A.   YES.



         7  Q.   DOES IT COMPORT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THE



         8  LIMITED EXTENT TO WHICH A BROWSER COULD EVER SERVE AS A



         9  SUBSTITUTE FOR WINDOWS IN TERMS OF PLATFORMS?



        10  A.   WELL, FOR THE BROWSER TO SERVE AS A SUBSTITUTE FOR A



        11  PLATFORM, YOU WOULD HAVE TO ADD ONTO THE BROWSER THINGS



        12  LIKE AN OPERATING SYSTEM.  THE BROWSER--A BROWSER DOESN'T



        13  RUN BY ITSELF WITHOUT AN OPERATING SYSTEM ANY MORE THAN AN



        14  OPERATING SYSTEM DOESN'T RUN WITHOUT A CHIP.



        15           SO, WHEN MR. BARKSDALE SAYS, "WE HAVE ALWAYS



        16  BELIEVED THAT IT COULD SUBSTITUTE FOR SOME OF THE



        17  CHARACTERISTICS BUT NOT FOR ALL OF IT," I ASSUME WHAT HE'S



        18  SAYING HERE IS THAT FOR NETSCAPE TO BE PART OF AN



        19  ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS REQUIRES NOT JUST THE BROWSER, BUT



        20  IT ALSO REQUIRES--TO BE A COMPLETELY DIFFERENT SUBSTITUTE



        21  PLATFORM.  YOU WOULD ALSO NEED AN OPERATING SYSTEM.  AND,



        22  OF COURSE, MOST IMPORTANT, YOU WOULD NEED A LARGE SET OF



        23  APPLICATIONS.



        24  Q.   YOU'RE GUESSING, AREN'T YOU, SIR?



        25  A.   AS TO WHAT--�
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         1  Q.   WHAT BARKSDALE MEANS.



         2  A.   HE'S SAYING THAT WE CAN SUBSTITUTE FOR SOME OF THE



         3  CHARACTERISTICS, BUT NEVER MAINTAIN, IN ANY SERIOUS WAY, A



         4  SUBSTITUTE FOR ALL OF IT.



         5  Q.   DID YOU READ MR. BARKSDALE'S DEPOSITION?



         6  A.   NO.



         7  Q.   DID YOU READ MR. CLARK, THE CHAIRMAN OF NETSCAPE'S



         8  DEPOSITION?



         9  A.   I PROBABLY READ SEGMENTS FROM IT.



        10  Q.   DID YOU READ MR. HOMER, THE MARKETING DIRECTOR OF



        11  NETSCAPE'S DEPOSITION?



        12  A.   SAME.



        13  Q.   DID YOU READ MR. ANDREESSEN'S DEPOSITION?



        14  A.   NO.



        15  Q.   DID YOU UNDERSTAND--SO, YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THAT



        16  EACH ONE OF THEM TESTIFIED THAT THE BROWSER WOULD ONLY



        17  EVER BE, EVEN IN THEORY, A SUBSTITUTE FOR WINDOWS TO THE



        18  EXTENT IT COULD HOST NETWORK-CENTRIC APPLICATIONS, OR



        19  WORDS TO THAT EFFECT?



        20  A.   THAT SEEMS REASONABLE.



        21  Q.   SO, IN FACT, EVEN WITH AN OPERATING SYSTEM, ALL THE



        22  BROWSER IS EVER GOING TO BE, OR COULD EVER BE, IS A



        23  PLATFORM FOR A RELATIVELY LIMITED CLASS OF NETWORK



        24  APPLICATIONS; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        25  A.   ABSENT JAVA, THAT WOULD SEEM REASONABLE.�
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         1           I THINK AS WE DISCUSSED THE OTHER DAY, MICROSOFT



         2  SAW THE CHALLENGE IN TERMS OF A COMBINATION OF A BROWSER



         3  AND A LANGUAGE WHICH WOULD ALLOW CROSS-PLATFORM



         4  APPLICATIONS.



         5           I WOULD AGREE THAT ABSENT SUCH CROSS-PLATFORM



         6  APPLICATIONS, THAT THE ABILITY OF NETSCAPE, WITHOUT ANY



         7  JAVA APPLICATIONS, WITH JUST HAVING APPLICATIONS THAT ARE



         8  WRITTEN TO THE API'S SPECIFICALLY IN NETSCAPE, THAT NUMBER



         9  OF APPLICATIONS BE VERY SMALL, AND THAT WOULD NOT BE A



        10  SIGNIFICANT ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS.



        11  Q.   ONCE AGAIN, DO YOU REMEMBER THE QUESTION THAT I ASKED



        12  YOU?



        13  A.   I KEEP SAYING, I THOUGHT THAT WAS THE QUESTION.



        14  Q.   OKAY.  LOOK AT FOOTNOTE THREE ON PAGE FOUR OF YOUR



        15  TESTIMONY.  YOU REFER TO A DOCUMENT THERE.  YOU MAY NEED



        16  TO LOOK AT THE TEXT.



        17           AND THE QUESTION IS:  IS THAT A REFERENCE TO



        18  MR. GATES'S MAY 1995 "INTERNET TIDAL WAVE" MEMORANDUM?



        19  A.   YES, I BELIEVE SO.



        20  Q.   AND YOU QUOTE A COUPLE OF WORDS FROM THAT DOCUMENT;



        21  CORRECT?



        22  A.   YES.



        23  Q.   AND IF--DO YOU RECALL THAT DOCUMENT TO BE A DOCUMENT



        24  IN WHICH MR. GATES LISTED A WHOLE SERIES OF TECHNICAL AND



        25  BUSINESS CHALLENGES AND COMPETITION TO MICROSOFT AS OF MAY�
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         1  1995?



         2  A.   I HAVE TO GO BACK AND LOOK AT IT.  I'M SURE YOU HAVE



         3  IT.



         4  Q.   OKAY.



         5           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, IT'S IN EVIDENCE



         6  ALREADY, BUT I WOULD LIKE TO HAND THE WITNESS A COPY OF



         7  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 20 SO HE COULD HAVE A CHANCE TO REVIEW



         8  IT.



         9           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)



        10  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        11  Q.   THE QUESTION IS:  IS THIS THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH YOU



        12  REFER IN THAT PARAGRAPH, AND DID I CHARACTERIZE IT



        13  ACCURATELY BY SAYING MR. GATES REVIEWS A WHOLE SERIES OF



        14  POTENTIAL COMPETITIVE ISSUES TO MICROSOFT AS OF MAY 1995?



        15  A.   IT'S THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH WE ARE REFERRING, AND IT'S



        16  A VERY LONG DOCUMENT, AND IT DISCUSSES A NUMBER OF ISSUES.



        17  Q.   AND LET ME SHOW YOU PAGE THREE WHERE THERE IS A



        18  SECTION THAT BEGINS WITH THE WORD "COMPETITION."  DO YOU



        19  SEE THAT?



        20  A.   YES.



        21  Q.   AND NETSCAPE IS DISCUSSED IN THAT SECTION, BUT BY MY



        22  COUNT, IT'S THE SIXTH COMPETITOR OR COMPETITIVE ISSUE



        23  DISCUSSED; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        24  A.   HOW FAR DOWN WE GOING?



        25  Q.   THROUGH THE END OF THE SECTION AND LABELED�
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         1  "COMPETITION."



         2           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



         3           THE COURT:  I THINK WHILE YOU READ THAT, SIR, WE



         4  WILL TAKE OUR AFTERNOON RECESS.



         5           THE WITNESS:  OKAY.



         6           (BRIEF RECESS.)



         7           THE COURT:  MR. LACOVARA, YOU WILL RECALL THAT WE



         8  WILL BE RECESSING AT 4:00 TOMORROW?



         9           MR. LACOVARA:  I DO, YOUR HONOR.



        10           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  AND WE WILL NOT RECONVENE



        11  UNTIL THE FOLLOWING MONDAY.



        12           MR. LACOVARA:  I'M AWARE OF THAT, YOUR HONOR.



        13           THE COURT:  I WOULD VERY MUCH LIKE TO CONCLUDE



        14  DR. WARREN-BOULTON THIS WEEK.



        15           MR. LACOVARA:  THIS WEEK, YOUR HONOR?



        16           THE COURT:  THIS WEEK.



        17           MR. LACOVARA:  TOMORROW?



        18           THE COURT:  TODAY AND TOMORROW.  ARE YOU TELLING



        19  ME WE CAN'T DO THAT?



        20           MR. LACOVARA:  THAT WOULD BE VERY DIFFICULT, YOUR



        21  HONOR, GIVEN THE LENGTH OF HIS TESTIMONY AND THE NUMBER OF



        22  SUBJECTS, INDEED THE ENTIRE SCOPE OF THIS CASE, THAT ARE



        23  COVERED IN THAT TESTIMONY.



        24           THE COURT:  WELL, BY MY CALCULATION, YOU ARE



        25  STILL ON PAGE FOUR OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY WHICH RUNS SOME�
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         1  89 PAGES, AND YOU HAD HIM FOR NEARLY TWO DAYS.



         2           MR. LACOVARA:  YES, SIR, AND WE HAVE CERTAINLY



         3  COVERED MORE ISSUES THAN FOUR PAGES WOULD REFLECT.



         4           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.



         5           MR. LACOVARA:  IS THE COURT'S INSTRUCTION THAT I



         6  MUST COMPLETE TOMORROW, SIR?



         7           THE COURT:  MR. SCHWARTZ, HOW LONG ARE YOU GOING



         8  TO BE?



         9           MR. SCHWARTZ:  WELL, SINCE CROSS ISN'T COMPLETED,



        10  YOUR HONOR, I CAN ONLY ESTIMATE.  AT THIS POINT, I WOULD



        11  SAY A COUPLE OF HOURS.



        12           THE COURT:  NO, I'M NOT GOING TO REQUIRE THAT YOU



        13  DO SO IF YOU TELL ME, IN GOOD FAITH, THAT YOU DON'T THINK



        14  YOU CAN DO SO.



        15           MR. LACOVARA:  THAT IS CERTAINLY MY VIEW, YOUR



        16  HONOR.  I WILL MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO FINISH ON MONDAY.  IF



        17  YOU WOULD LIKE TO DISCUSS THIS FURTHER, I WOULD CERTAINLY



        18  TALK TO THE COURT AT THE SIDE BAR.



        19           THE COURT:  I'M SORRY?



        20           MR. LACOVARA:  IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO DISCUSS THIS



        21  IN MORE DETAIL, WE COULD DISCUSS THIS IN SIDE BAR.



        22           THE COURT:  NO, JUST WORD TO THE WISE.  I'M



        23  URGING TO BE CONCISE.



        24           MR. LACOVARA:  THANK YOU.



        25  BY MR. LACOVARA:�
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         1  Q.   DR. WARREN-BOULTON, WE WERE TALKING ABOUT GOVERNMENT



         2  EXHIBIT 20 WHEN WE BROKE.  DO YOU RECALL THAT, SIR?



         3  A.   YES.



         4  Q.   AND YOU DIDN'T INTEND BY QUOTING THAT DOCUMENT THE



         5  WAY YOU DID TO SUGGEST THAT MICROSOFT WAS SINGULARLY OR



         6  UNIQUELY FOCUSED ON NETSCAPE AT THIS PERIOD OF TIME, DID



         7  YOU, SIR?



         8  A.   I QUOTED THE DOCUMENT FOR THE PURPOSE I QUOTED IT



         9  FOR, WHICH IS MR. GATES'S VIEW OF NETSCAPE IN MAY OF 1995



        10  AND THE CHALLENGE THAT THE NETSCAPE AND THE INTERNET POSED



        11  TO THE OPERATING SYSTEM.



        12  Q.   AND IN THIS DOCUMENT, IF I READ IT CORRECTLY,



        13  MR. GATES MAKES A STATEMENT ABOUT NETSCAPE, NAMELY THAT



        14  THEIR BROWSER IS DOMINANT WITH 70 PERCENT USAGE SHARE.  DO



        15  YOU SEE THAT?



        16  A.   YES.



        17  Q.   AND THAT WAS AN ACCURATE STATEMENT AS FAR AS YOU



        18  UNDERSTAND IT?



        19  A.   I'M NOT SURE WHAT MR. GATES REGARDS AS DOMINANT, BUT



        20  AT THE TIME, 70 PERCENT USAGE SHARE SOUNDS ABOUT RIGHT.



        21  Q.   AND YOU SAY THAT YOU USED THIS DOCUMENT TO SHOW A



        22  KIND OF COMPETITIVE THREAT OR COMPETITIVE ISSUE WAS POSED



        23  BY NETSCAPE; RIGHT?



        24  A.   I USED THIS TO SHOW WHAT MR. GATES THOUGHT WAS POSED



        25  BY NETSCAPE.�
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         1  Q.   AND ALTHOUGH YOU DON'T QUOTE IT IN YOUR TESTIMONY,



         2  MR. GATES SAYS EXACTLY WHAT MICROSOFT SHOULD DO TO RESPOND



         3  TO THIS COMPETITIVE FORCE BORN ON THE INTERNET, NAMELY



         4  NETSCAPE, DOES HE NOT?



         5           IN FACT, WHAT HE SAYS IS, "WE HAVE TO MATCH AND



         6  BEAT THEIR OFFERINGS"; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



         7  A.   THAT'S WHAT HE SAYS, YES.



         8  Q.   YOU DON'T BELIEVE THERE IS ANYTHING WRONG WITH A



         9  COMPANY LIKE EVEN MICROSOFT TRYING TO MATCH AND BEAT THE



        10  OFFERINGS OF A COMPETITOR, DO YOU, SIR?



        11  A.   IN GENERAL, MOST CASES, NO.



        12  Q.   AND YOU DON'T CONTEND THAT THERE IS ANYTHING WRONG



        13  WITH MICROSOFT WORKING TO CONVINCE APPLICATIONS AND



        14  WRITERS--APPLICATIONS WRITERS AND USERS OF SOFTWARE THAT



        15  WINDOWS MACHINES ARE THE BEST CHOICE FOR THE INTERNET, DO



        16  YOU?



        17  A.   I THINK THE QUESTION WOULD BE EXACTLY HOW WOULD THAT



        18  BE IMPLEMENTED.



        19  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOU DON'T BELIEVE THERE IS ANYTHING



        20  ANTICOMPETITIVE, IN PRINCIPLE, ABOUT MICROSOFT'S DESIRE TO



        21  PROMOTE ITS TECHNOLOGY OR ITS SOFTWARE, DO YOU, SIR?



        22  A.   I THINK THAT A PROBLEM IS RAISED WHEN A FIRM PROMOTES



        23  WITH A VERY, VERY HIGH MARKET SHARE, AGGRESSIVELY



        24  PROMOTES, A TECHNOLOGY WHERE THE INTENTION IS TO PREVENT



        25  THE GROWTH OF CROSS-PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES.  I THINK THAT�
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         1  WOULD BE OF CONCERN.



         2  Q.   WHAT IF MICROSOFT GENUINELY BELIEVES IN ITS HEART OF



         3  HEARTS THAT ITS TECHNOLOGY IS JUST BETTER THAN



         4  CROSS-PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES?  IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT IT



         5  SHOULD NOT BE PERMITTED TO PROMOTE THOSE MICROSOFT- OR



         6  WINDOWS-SPECIFIC TECHNOLOGIES EVEN IN THE FACE OF



         7  CROSS-PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES?



         8  A.   NO, I'M SAYING THAT WHEN A FIRM HAS A VERY, VERY HIGH



         9  MARKET SHARE, IT CAN DEVELOP TECHNOLOGIES WHICH WORK ONLY



        10  ON ITS OPERATING SYSTEM AND WHICH IT--WHILE IT HAS A VERY



        11  HIGH MARKET SHARE, IT MAY BE IN THE INTEREST OF INDIVIDUAL



        12  DEVELOPERS TO ACCEPT.



        13           I THINK IN TERMS OF ASKING, IS THAT SOMETHING OF



        14  CONCERN, ONE WOULD HAVE TO GO TO THE INTENT OF THE FIRM IN



        15  QUESTION.  IF, INDEED, THE INTENT WAS PRIMARILY NOT TO



        16  SIMPLY PROVIDE A BETTER TECHNOLOGY, BUT RATHER THAT THE



        17  GOAL WAS TO PREVENT ENTRY OF A COMPETING OPERATING SYSTEM



        18  OR OTHERWISE DEVELOPMENTS WHICH WOULD COMMODITIZE AND



        19  REDUCE THE MONOPOLY POWER, THEN I THINK THAT COULD BE OF



        20  CONCERN.



        21           I'M NOT, OBVIOUSLY, GIVING YOU A LEGAL OPINION.



        22  THAT'S JUST AS AN ECONOMIST.



        23  Q.   AND YOU BELIEVE, AS AN ECONOMIST, THAT YOU'RE



        24  COMPETENT TO MAKE JUDGMENTS ABOUT THE INTENT OF



        25  CORPORATIONS FROM READING DOCUMENTS; IS THAT CORRECT?�
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         1  A.   I THINK THAT I HAVE READ AN AWFUL LOT OF MICROSOFT



         2  DOCUMENTS.



         3  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE YOU'RE MORE COMPETENT TO COME TO



         4  JUDGMENTS ABOUT INTENT THAN THE COURT, FOR INSTANCE?



         5  A.   I WOULD, OBVIOUSLY, NEVER SAY THAT.



         6  Q.   NOW, GO TO PARAGRAPH 14 OF YOUR TESTIMONY.



         7           THE COURT:  PARAGRAPH WHAT?



         8           MR. LACOVARA:  FOURTEEN, YOU HONOR.  WE ARE



         9  MOVING A BREAK-NECK SPEED.  WE ARE ON PAGE FIVE.



        10  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        11  Q.   YOU MAKE A REFERENCE HERE TO A MARKET TEST.  DO YOU



        12  SEE THAT?



        13  A.   I--



        14  Q.   AND I BELIEVE WHAT YOU SAY IS THAT OEM'S SHOULD BE



        15  ABLE TO OFFER THE, QUOTE, PRODUCT CONFIGURATION OF THEIR



        16  CHOICE.



        17           IS THAT WHAT YOU TESTIFIED TO IN PARAGRAPH 14?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   NOW, IS IT YOUR OPINION THAT MICROSOFT SHOULD HAVE TO



        20  OFFER THIS MARKET TEST FOR EVERY FEATURE OF WINDOWS 98, OR



        21  IS IT UNIQUELY APPLICABLE TO WHAT YOU CALL "INTERNET



        22  EXPLORER"?



        23  A.   I WOULD SAY THAT--THE SHORT ANSWER IS NO, TO TRY TO



        24  KEEP ANSWERS SHORT.



        25  Q.   OKAY.  AND CAN YOU TELL ME WHAT THE LIMITING�
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         1  PRINCIPLE IS?  HOW CAN MICROSOFT DRAW A LINE AS TO WHICH



         2  PRODUCT CONFIGURATIONS IT IS ALLOWED TO PERMIT AND WHICH



         3  IT IS NOT ALLOWED, OR WHICH IT SHOULD NOT HAVE TO PERMIT?



         4  A.   THE CENTRAL CONCERN THAT IS RAISED HERE IS WHEN A



         5  PRODUCT IS INCLUDED OR TIED, AS I USED THE TERM, WHERE THE



         6  TIED PRODUCT IS NOT SIMPLY A COMPLEMENT TO THE OPERATING



         7  SYSTEM, BUT WHERE THE TIED PRODUCT IS A PARTIAL SUBSTITUTE



         8  OR CAN PLAY THE ROLE AS A SUBSTITUTE, UNDER THOSE



         9  CIRCUMSTANCES, MICROSOFT'S DECISION TO NOT OFFER THE



        10  PRODUCT SEPARATELY, INHERENTLY, IS SOMETHING WHICH MAY BE



        11  OF CONCERN.



        12  Q.   SO, YOUR TESTIMONY IS THAT MICROSOFT SHOULD BE



        13  REQUIRED TO OFFER PRODUCT CONFIGURATIONS TO OEM'S SEPARATE



        14  FOR EACH SEPARATE PRODUCT THAT'S PART OF THE OPERATING



        15  SYSTEM IF THAT PRODUCT COULD BE PART--COULD BE A PARTIAL



        16  SUBSTITUTE FOR THE OPERATING SYSTEM; IS THAT YOUR



        17  TESTIMONY?



        18  A.   NO.



        19  Q.   I'M SORRY, I DON'T UNDERSTAND IT, THEN.  COULD YOU



        20  TRY ONE MORE TIME FOR ME.



        21  A.   ALL I WAS SAYING, CHARACTERISTIC OF THE BROWSER IS



        22  THAT THE BROWSER IS A PARTIAL SUBSTITUTE FOR THE OPERATING



        23  SYSTEM.  AND AS SUCH, THE DECISION TO TIE, TO REFUSE TO



        24  ALLOW THE PRODUCTS TO BE PROVIDED SEPARATELY, IS SOMETHING



        25  WHICH IS INHERENTLY OF CONCERN.�
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         1  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY IN THE



         2  WORLD WHERE THE OWNER OF THAT INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY IS



         3  REQUIRED TO GIVE PURCHASERS OF THAT INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY



         4  THE ABILITY TO SAY, "I WANT PART OF IT BUT NOT ALL OF IT"



         5  OR "I WANT YOU TO CHANGE IT FOR ME BEFORE YOU WILL LICENSE



         6  OR SELL IT TO ME"?



         7  A.   I CAN'T SPEAK TO INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ASPECTS.



         8  OBVIOUSLY, I CAN LOOK TO FIRMS IN SIMILAR SITUATIONS TO



         9  MICROSOFT AND SAY, "DO YOU PUT THESE KINDS OF RESTRICTIONS



        10  ON?"  AND THAT, AS AN ECONOMIST, WOULD BE A RELEVANT



        11  QUESTION TO ASK.



        12  Q.   BUT THE QUESTION I ASKED, YOU'RE NOT AWARE OF ANY



        13  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THAT KIND OF CONSTRAINT



        14  OR REQUIREMENT, ARE YOU, SIR?



        15  A.   IN GENERAL, I WOULD ASSUME THAT THERE ARE COPYRIGHT



        16  AND OTHER INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS.  IT'S ALWAYS



        17  BEEN MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THE VALIDITY OF THOSE



        18  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS ARE DEPENDENT ON THEIR



        19  NOT ABUSING THOSE RESTRICTIONS.  AND, INDEED, THE PURPOSE



        20  AND INTENT WAS TO--WAS ANTICOMPETITIVE.  WHILE CERTAINLY



        21  NOT OFFERING MYSELF AS AN EXPERT ON INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY



        22  LAW, IT'S ALWAYS BEEN MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THAT WOULD



        23  MEAN THAT THOSE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS MAY NO LONGER



        24  BE VALID.



        25  Q.   THE SECTION MARKED "SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS" ON PAGES�
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         1  SIX THROUGH NINE OF YOUR TESTIMONY, REVIEW IT VERY QUICKLY



         2  AND JUST CONFIRM FOR ME MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THERE IS



         3  NOTHING THERE THAT IS NOT OTHERWISE TAKEN UP IN SOME OTHER



         4  PORTION OF YOUR TESTIMONY.



         5  A.   WHERE ARE WE?



         6  Q.   ROMAN THREE, STARTING AT PAGE SIX, GOES FROM PAGES



         7  SIX TO NINE.



         8  A.   RIGHT.



         9  Q.   THE QUESTION IS:  IS THERE ANYTHING IN THERE THAT IS



        10  NOT REPEATED SOMEWHERE ELSE IN YOUR TESTIMONY?  IT'S



        11  MERELY JUST A SUMMARY, SO I DO NOT NEED TO COVER IT



        12  SEPARATELY.  THAT'S THE QUESTION I NEED TO HAVE ANSWERED.



        13  A.   WELL, WITHOUT GOING THROUGH SEPARATELY AND CHECKING,



        14  I WOULD EXPECT THAT SINCE IT'S A SUMMARY, IT'S COVERED



        15  ELSEWHERE.



        16  Q.   GO TO PARAGRAPH 19, THEN, ON PAGE TEN.  CAN YOU TELL



        17  ME WHAT NON-MICROSOFT BROWSERS TODAY ARE CAPABLE OF



        18  DISTRIBUTING JAVA CROSS-PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES?



        19  A.   IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT NETSCAPE DISTRIBUTES A



        20  PURE JAVA JVM.



        21  Q.   ANYBODY ELSE?



        22           THE COURT:  WHO DID YOU SAY?



        23           THE WITNESS:  NETSCAPE.



        24           I'M TRYING TO THINK WHICH OTHER--THERE MAY BE



        25  OTHER BROWSERS THAT CARRY A JVM, BUT NONE COME TO MIND.�
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         1  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         2  Q.   SO, REALLY, WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT NON-MICROSOFT



         3  BROWSERS, YOU'RE REALLY TALKING ABOUT NETSCAPE'S PRODUCTS



         4  HERE, AREN'T YOU, SIR?



         5  A.   I MEAN, IN THIS CONTEXT--WELL, GIVEN THAT BETWEEN THE



         6  TWO OF THEM, THEY PROBABLY HAVE THE OVERWHELMING SHARE OF



         7  THE MARKET.



         8           I THINK--WHEN I TALK ABOUT OTHER INDEPENDENT



         9  BROWSERS, I'M BASICALLY REFERRING TO NETSCAPE IN THE SAME



        10  WAY AS WHEN MICROSOFT, IN ITS CONTRACTS, REFERS TO OTHER



        11  BROWSERS.  I THINK WE CAN ALL ASSUME THAT THEY ARE TALKING



        12  ABOUT NETSCAPE.  WE ARE ALL TALKING ABOUT NETSCAPE.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH NETSCAPE'S OFFERING



        14  CALLED COMMUNICATOR?



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   DO YOU CONSIDER THAT TO BE ONE PRODUCT OR MULTIPLE



        17  PRODUCTS?



        18  A.   I CONSIDER IT TO BE A COLLECTION OF PRODUCTS.



        19  Q.   OKAY.  DO YOU KNOW HOW SOON AFTER NAVIGATOR 1.0 WAS



        20  RELEASED THAT NETSCAPE BEGAN ADDING OTHER FEATURES TO WHAT



        21  IT CALLED NAVIGATOR, INCLUDING AN E-MAIL CLIENT,



        22  MESSAGING, GROUP DOCUMENT EDITING, ET CETERA?



        23  A.   HOW SOON, NO, BUT THEY CERTAINLY DID.



        24  Q.   AND THEY DID IT WHEN THEY WERE, TO USE MR. GATES'S



        25  WORDS, DOMINANT; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   AND DO YOU CONSIDER THAT--AND IT DID NOT INCREASE THE



         3  PRICE, AT LEAST INITIALLY, WHEN IT DID THAT; ISN'T THAT



         4  RIGHT, SIR?



         5  A.   I CAN'T TELL YOU THAT.



         6  Q.   HAVE YOU FOLLOWED WHAT NETSCAPE'S PRICING WAS SINCE



         7  THE FIRST NAVIGATOR PRODUCT WAS RELEASED?



         8  A.   I HAVEN'T SEEN VERY GOOD NUMBERS OF NETSCAPE'S



         9  PRICES.  THEY'RE, MORE OR LESS, ALL OVER THE MAP.



        10  Q.   I SEE.  DID YOU READ, BY ANY CHANCE, NETSCAPE'S PRESS



        11  RELEASES ON WHAT ITS PRICES WERE?



        12  A.   ITS PRESS RELEASES?  I HAVE LOOKED AT WHAT



        13  INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE ON WHAT NETSCAPE CHARGED, FOR



        14  EXAMPLE, TO ISP'S, WHAT IT CHARGED FOR PEOPLE WHO



        15  DOWNLOADED OVER THE NET.  I MEAN, THERE WAS ANY



        16  INFORMATION TO CHARGE TO BUSINESSES, BUT--SO I'M GENERALLY



        17  FAMILIAR WITH THE ISSUE.



        18  Q.   AND THE STAND-ALONE E-MAIL CLIENT AND MESSAGING



        19  SOFTWARE THAT NETSCAPE ADDED TO NAVIGATOR WHEN IT WAS THE



        20  DOMINANT BROWSER, AS YOU WOULD CALL IT "BROWSER," WAS



        21  ADDING FUNCTIONALITY THAT WAS PROVIDED SEPARATELY BY OTHER



        22  SOFTWARE; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        23  A.   MY RECOLLECTION IS THE COMMUNICATOR DID PUT TOGETHER



        24  THE E-MAIL AND THE BROWSER IN ONE PACKAGE, YES.



        25  Q.   THE QUESTION I ASKED YOU, DR. WARREN-BOULTON, WAS:�
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         1  WASN'T E-MAIL SOFTWARE OFFERED SEPARATELY BY OTHER FIRMS?



         2  THAT'S THE QUESTION, SIR.



         3  A.   WAS E-MAIL OFFERED AS A SEPARATE PRODUCT?  YES.



         4  Q.   DO YOU CONSIDER IT ANTICOMPETITIVE THAT NETSCAPE,



         5  WHEN IT WAS THE DOMINANT BROWSER MANUFACTURER, ADDED, AT



         6  NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE, SOFTWARE FUNCTIONALITY THAT



         7  OTHERWISE THE USER WOULD HAVE HAD TO GO OUT AND BUY FROM A



         8  THIRD PARTY?



         9  A.   BY ITSELF, NO, BUT IT'S ALSO MY UNDERSTANDING THAT



        10  NETSCAPE'S ATTEMPT TO DO SO, IF, INDEED, IT WAS



        11  UNSUCCESSFUL IN THE SENSE THAT THE RESPONSE FROM THE



        12  BUSINESS COMMUNITY IS NO, THEY DIDN'T WANT IT TOGETHER,



        13  BUT THEY WANTED IT SEPARATELY, AND NETSCAPE RESPONDED BY



        14  PROVIDING IT SEPARATELY.



        15  Q.   AND YOU BELIEVE IT IS APPROPRIATE FOR A SOFTWARE FIRM



        16  TO RESPOND TO WHAT THE MARKET TELLS IT ABOUT WHAT IT WANTS



        17  IN ITS PRODUCTS; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        18  A.   I THINK IT'S ALWAYS APPROPRIATE FOR A FIRM TO RESPOND



        19  TO ITS CONSUMERS' WISHES, WHETHER THEY ARE OEM'S OR



        20  ULTIMATE CONSUMERS.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  GO TO PARAGRAPH 21 ON PAGE 11, PLEASE.  YOU



        22  USE THE PHRASE HERE "OPERATING SYSTEM PRODUCT."



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   AND YOU DISTINGUISH THAT FROM SOMETHING YOU CALLED



        25  "OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE."  DO YOU SEE THAT?�
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         1  A.   YES.



         2  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER SEEN ANYONE IN THE COMPUTER SOFTWARE



         3  INDUSTRY DRAW THAT PARTICULAR DISTINCTION BEFORE?



         4  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE SO.  AND I DON'T THINK, ACTUALLY, I



         5  USE THE "OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE" DISTINCTION LATER.



         6  I'M NOT SURE.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  WELL, YOU HAVE A DEFINITION HERE.  YOU SAY,



         8  "OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE IS SOFTWARE THAT CAN BE PART OF



         9  THE OPERATING SYSTEM."



        10           CAN YOU GIVE ME A BETTER DEFINITION THAN THAT,



        11  BECAUSE THAT STRIKES ME AS A TAUTOLOGY, SIR.



        12  A.   I'M SORRY, OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE IS--I THINK THE



        13  DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTIC HERE IS THAT--IS THAT THIS



        14  IS A TERM THAT CAN BE USED TO DESCRIBE SOFTWARE WHICH IS



        15  EITHER OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE OR VERY CLOSELY RELATED



        16  TO IT SUCH AS UTILITIES.



        17           THE DISTINCTION, I THINK, ONE IS TRYING TO DRAW



        18  HERE IS SEPARATE PRODUCTS LIKE APPLICATIONS WHICH EXTEND



        19  THE FUNCTIONALITY, DO SOMETHING DIFFERENT, AND PRODUCTS



        20  WHICH ARE NOT NECESSARILY PART OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM BUT



        21  ARE RELATED TO THE OPERATING SYSTEM SINCE THEY MAKE THE



        22  OPERATING SYSTEM WORK FASTER.  AND I'M THINKING, OF



        23  COURSE, OF UTILITIES.



        24  Q.   DO YOU REGARD INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND RETRIEVAL AS



        25  PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM OR AS CLOSELY RELATED TO AN�
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         1  OPERATING SYSTEM FUNCTION?



         2  A.   WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY "INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND



         3  RETRIEVAL"?



         4  Q.   FINDING INFORMATION AND STORING INFORMATION AND



         5  ORGANIZING INFORMATION.



         6  A.   STORING AND ORGANIZING INFORMATION AS IN THE



         7  INTERNET--I'M SORRY, SEARCHING WITHIN THE OPERATING



         8  SYSTEM?  YEAH, I WOULD THINK OF THAT AS AN OPERATING



         9  SYSTEM FUNCTION.



        10  Q.   SO, YOU WOULD REGARD THE SOFTWARE IN AN OPERATING



        11  SYSTEM THAT ENABLES THE USER TO LOCATE, RETRIEVE, AND VIEW



        12  INFORMATION ON THE HARD DISK AS OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE;



        13  CORRECT?



        14  A.   THAT CODE COULD BE USED FOR OPERATING SYSTEM



        15  FUNCTIONALITY, YES.



        16  Q.   AND WOULD YOU SAY THE SAME FOR SOFTWARE THAT ENABLES



        17  THE USER TO FIND OR STORE INFORMATION OR RENDER



        18  INFORMATION THAT IS LOCATED ON A CD-ROM DRIVE?



        19  A.   WE ARE TALKING HERE ABOUT SOFTWARE WHICH IS USED FOR



        20  INTERNAL SEARCH ON A CD?  YES.



        21  Q.   WE ARE TALKING ABOUT SOFTWARE THAT ENABLES THE USER



        22  TO FIND AND RENDER INFORMATION THAT IS ON A CD-ROM, OR TO



        23  STORE INFORMATION ON THAT CD-ROM.



        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I WOULD HAVE TO THINK ABOUT THAT.



        25  Q.   OKAY.  WHAT ABOUT STORE INFORMATION ON A LOCAL AREA�
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         1  NETWORK?  DO YOU REGARD SOFTWARE THAT ENABLES SOMEONE TO



         2  FIND AND RENDER AND SEND INFORMATION TO A LOCAL AREA



         3  NETWORK TO BE OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE?



         4  A.   NO.



         5  Q.   CAN YOU TELL ME THE PRINCIPAL DISTINCTION YOU DRAW



         6  BETWEEN FINDING INFORMATION ON THE HARD DRIVE AND FINDING



         7  INFORMATION ON A LOCAL AREA NETWORK IN TERMS OF ONE BEING



         8  OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE AND THE OTHER NOT?



         9  A.   I THINK IT'S A DISTINCTION BETWEEN SEARCHING WITHIN A



        10  PC OR DESKTOP AND BROWSING OUTSIDE.



        11  Q.   DO YOU THINK USERS DRAW THAT DISTINCTION, NAMELY A



        12  DISTINCTION BETWEEN FINDING INFORMATION THAT'S LOCATED ON



        13  THE COMPUTER AND FINDING INFORMATION THEY GET THROUGH THE



        14  COMPUTER FROM SOME OTHER SOURCE?



        15  A.   I THINK PEOPLE WHO DRAW A DISTINCTION OR NOTICE



        16  WHETHER OR NOT THEY ARE LOOKING FOR A FILE ON THEIR HARD



        17  DRIVE VERSUS WHETHER THEY ARE CALLING UP THE WASHINGTON



        18  POST WEB PAGE.



        19  Q.   IS IT NOT CORRECT, SIR, THAT THE MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS



        20  THAT YOU INCLUDE IN THIS VERY TESTIMONY SAY PRECISELY THE



        21  OPPOSITE, THAT USERS REGARD OR WANT TO HAVE INFORMATION



        22  SEARCHABLE THROUGH A COMMON INTERFACE NO MATTER WHERE IT'S



        23  LOCATED, BECAUSE ALL THEY WANT IS TO GET THE INFORMATION?



        24  A.   WE WOULD HAVE TO GO LOOK AT MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS, BUT,



        25  I MEAN, IF YOU HAVE SOMETHING IN PARTICULAR...�

                                                           61



         1  Q.   FOR THESE MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS, YOU DON'T HAVE ANY IN



         2  YOUR HEAD THAT SAY THAT; IS THAT RIGHT?



         3  A.   NO, I'M AWARE THAT MICROSOFT HAS HAD--HAS THOUGHT OF



         4  A PROCESS OF IT WOULD LIKE TO HAVE OR BELIEVES THAT THERE



         5  MAY BE A DEMAND FOR A USER INTERFACE IN WHICH YOU SORT OF



         6  SEARCH WITHIN THE MACHINE, YOU SEARCH OUTSIDE, YOU SEARCH



         7  ON THE NET, YOU SEARCH INTRANET.



         8  Q.   AND THEY DID STUDIES WITH USERS, DIDN'T THEY?



         9  A.   THAT I DON'T KNOW.



        10  Q.   REALLY?



        11  A.   YES.



        12  Q.   DID YOU CITE ANY OF THOSE IN YOUR TESTIMONY WITHOUT



        13  KNOWING WHAT THEY ARE?



        14  A.   DO YOU WANT TO LOOK AT SOMETHING IN PARTICULAR?



        15  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY RECOLLECTION, SIR, IS MY QUESTION.



        16  A.   OF WHAT?



        17  Q.   OF SUCH A STUDY THAT MICROSOFT DID THAT YOU HAVE



        18  CITED IN YOUR TESTIMONY.



        19  A.   A STUDY OF CONSUMERS WISHING TO BOTH...



        20  Q.   USERS WANT A COMMON EXPERIENCE AND A COMMON INTERFACE



        21  FOR WHICH TO FIND INFORMATION, SIR.



        22           AND IF THERE IS SOME LACK OF CLARITY IN THIS OR



        23  ANY QUESTION I ASK, PLEASE JUST TELL ME, AND I WILL



        24  REPHRASE IT VERY QUICKLY.



        25  A.   OKAY.  WELL, GO AHEAD.�
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         1  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN DOCUMENTS FROM MICROSOFT IN WHICH



         2  MICROSOFT PERFORMED STUDIES OR MARKET RESEARCH AND WHAT



         3  USERS TOLD THEM THEY WANTED WAS A SINGLE EXPERIENCE AND A



         4  SINGLE INTERFACE BY WHICH THEY COULD ACCESS, RENDER,



         5  STORE, OR SHIP INFORMATION, WHETHER IT CAME FROM A HARD



         6  DRIVE, A FLOPPY DISK, A CD-ROM, A LOCAL AREA NETWORK, OR



         7  THE INTERNET, SIR?



         8  A.   DO I REMEMBER SPECIFIC STUDIES?  NO.  BUT DO I



         9  REMEMBER REFERENCES TO SOMETHING LIKE THAT?  PROBABLY.



        10  Q.   YOU MENTION A DISK CLEANUP UTILITY AS A REFERENCE--AS



        11  AN EXAMPLE OF SOFTWARE THAT IS CLOSELY RELATED TO THE



        12  OPERATING SYSTEM AND, THUS, SHOULD BE REGARDED AS



        13  OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        14  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        15  Q.   THAT'S IN PARAGRAPH 21 OF YOUR TESTIMONY; CORRECT?



        16  A.   YES.



        17  Q.   NOW, ISN'T IT TRUE THAT FOR A SUBSTANTIAL PERIOD OF



        18  TIME THERE IS NO SUCH THING AS A DISK CLEANUP UTILITY?



        19  A.   THAT WOULD BE TRUE FOR ALL SOFTWARE.



        20  Q.   AND ISN'T IT ALSO TRUE THAT FOR A PERIOD OF TIME NO



        21  OPERATING SYSTEM HAD DISK CLEANUP UTILITIES, THAT YOU HAD



        22  TO GO BUY THEM SEPARATELY?



        23  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        24  Q.   AND AT THAT TIME, SINCE YOU HAD TO BUY IT SEPARATELY,



        25  I TAKE IT YOU WOULD NOT HAVE REGARDED THAT SORT OF�
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         1  SOFTWARE AS OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE, WOULD YOU HAVE?



         2  A.   NO.  IT WAS SIMPLY OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE THAT WAS



         3  NOT PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM PRODUCT.



         4  Q.   OKAY.  SO, YOU CAN HAVE OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE



         5  THAT IS NOT PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM PRODUCT?



         6  A.   CORRECT.



         7  Q.   DO YOU KNOW IF ANYBODY ELSE IN THE COMPUTER INDUSTRY



         8  OR IN THE WORLD HAS THAT KIND OF A DEFINITION OF OPERATING



         9  SYSTEM SOFTWARE?



        10  A.   NO.



        11  Q.   NO, YOU DON'T KNOW WHETHER ANYBODY DOES?



        12  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHETHER ANYBODY ELSE DOES.



        13  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN ANYBODY DRAW THAT KIND OF A DISTINCTION



        14  OR THOSE KINDS OF DEFINITIONS?



        15  A.   NO.  THE PURPOSE HERE IS A VERY SIMPLE ONE.  IT IS TO



        16  TRY TO DISTINGUISH BETWEEN FUNCTIONALITIES WHICH EXTEND,



        17  SHALL WE SAY, THE NUMBER OF THINGS YOU CAN DO AND OTHER



        18  KINDS OF SOFTWARE WHICH IMPROVES THE WAY IN WHICH YOU DO



        19  THEM.



        20  Q.   OKAY.  SO, WHAT YOU'RE TELLING ME IS THAT SOFTWARE



        21  CAN BE OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE EVEN THOUGH IT DOESN'T



        22  COME WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT?



        23  A.   IT DOESN'T COME BUNDLED WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM



        24  PRODUCT.



        25  Q.   YOU GOT TO GO BUY IT SEPARATELY?�
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         1  A.   THAT'S QUITE POSSIBLE, YES.



         2  Q.   AND SOMETHING CAN COME TO BE CONSIDERED OPERATING



         3  SYSTEM SOFTWARE OVER TIME EVEN IF IT'S NOT PART OF THE



         4  OPERATING SYSTEM AT SOME PRIOR TIME; IS THAT ALSO CORRECT?



         5  A.   NO.  I THINK THE DEFINITION OF OPERATING SYSTEM



         6  SOFTWARE HERE IS SOMETHING WHICH IS COMPLEMENTARY TO THE



         7  OPERATING SYSTEM IN THE SENSE THAT IT IMPROVES THE



         8  FUNCTIONING OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM AS OPPOSED TO



         9  EXTENDING THE CAPABILITIES OR THE USAGES OF THE OPERATING



        10  SYSTEM.



        11  Q.   TO USE YOUR EXAMPLE WITH A TCPIP STACK, WHAT IS THAT,



        12  SIR?



        13  A.   THAT CAN PROBABLY BE BEST DESCRIBED AS THE PLUMBING



        14  FOR THE INTERNET.



        15  Q.   IS THAT OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE?



        16  A.   I WOULD SAY THAT THE TCPIP STACK IS SOMETHING WHICH



        17  ONE WOULD EXPECT TO--OR IT WOULD BE REASONABLE TO EXPECT



        18  TO SEE AS PART OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE, YES.



        19  Q.   IN PARAGRAPH 22 YOU DEFINE AN APPLICATION AS



        20  SOFTWARE--A SOFTWARE PROGRAM DESIGNED TO ASSIST IN THE



        21  PERFORMANCE OF A SPECIFIC TASK.



        22           NOW, MAYBE I JUST GOT CONFUSED READING YOUR



        23  TESTIMONY, BUT TELL ME WHY THIS DISK CLEANUP SOFTWARE



        24  DOESN'T FIT EXACTLY THAT DEFINITION.



        25  A.   I THINK THE DISTINCTION IS BETWEEN A PIECE OF�
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         1  SOFTWARE WHICH MAKES, SHALL WE SAY, A NUMBER OF



         2  APPLICATIONS, OR THE OPERATING SYSTEM, AS A WHOLE, RUN



         3  BETTER, AS OPPOSED TO SOMETHING WHICH IS USED FOR A



         4  SPECIFIC APPLICATION OR A SPECIFIC NEW USE.  IT'S A--YES.



         5  Q.   THOSE AREN'T YOUR WORDS.



         6  A.   I THINK WE--I THINK I'M REPEATING WHAT I SAID



         7  EARLIER.



         8  Q.   WELL, I'M TRYING TO FIGURE OUT WHY YOUR DEFINITIONS



         9  DON'T MEAN THAT YOUR CHOSEN EXAMPLE CAN BE BOTH OPERATING



        10  SYSTEM SOFTWARE SEPARATELY ACQUIRED AND AN APPLICATION ALL



        11  AT THE SAME TIME.



        12  A.   OPERATING SYSTEMS--A PIECE OF OPERATING SYSTEM



        13  SOFTWARE, AS WE DEFINE IT HERE, COULD BE--AS A PRODUCT,



        14  COULD BE BUNDLED WITH THE OPERATING SYSTEM OR IT COULD BE



        15  PURCHASED SEPARATELY.  I'M NOT SURE WHERE THE SOURCE OF



        16  YOUR PROBLEM IS.



        17  Q.   WE WILL MOVE ON.



        18           IN PARAGRAPH 24 WE REVIEWED EARLIER, THAT'S THE



        19  PARAGRAPH WHERE YOU SAY IT'S IMPORTANT THAT BUSINESSES AND



        20  HOUSEHOLDS HAVE DIFFERENT PREFERENCES AND MAKE DIFFERENT



        21  PURCHASE DECISIONS AND HAVE DIFFERENT DEMAND



        22  CHARACTERISTICS; IS THAT RIGHT?  THAT'S WHAT YOU SAY IN



        23  24.



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   OKAY.  AND THEN IN PARAGRAPH 25, YOU SAY, REGARDING�
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         1  OEM'S, THAT THEY BELIEVE IT IS COMMERCIALLY NECESSARY TO



         2  OFFER WINDOWS 98 ON THE PC'S THEY SELL TO END USERS.  DO



         3  YOU SEE THAT?



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   AND YOU CITE THE TESTIMONY OF TWO PEOPLE:  BART BROWN



         6  AND WEBB MCKINNEY.  DO YOU SEE THAT IN FOOTNOTE TEN?



         7  A.   YES.



         8  Q.   ISN'T IT CORRECT THAT BOTH OF THOSE INDIVIDUALS WERE



         9  TALKING SPECIFICALLY AND ONLY ABOUT THE HOME MARKET?



        10  A.   I WOULD BE SURPRISED.  USUALLY, IN THESE DEPOSITIONS,



        11  THEY ARE BEING ASKED ABOUT SPECIFIC PRODUCTS, WHETHER IT'S



        12  NOTEBOOKS, HOME MARKET.  THAT'S THE CONTEXT IN WHICH THEY



        13  HAVE ASKED.



        14  Q.   AND IN FACT--SO, THEY'RE NOT TESTIFYING ABOUT END



        15  USERS AS A WHOLE, EVEN THOUGH THAT'S WHAT YOU'RE IMPLYING



        16  IN YOUR TESTIMONY; ISN'T THAT RIGHT, SIR?



        17  A.   THE STATEMENT IS THAT OEM'S BELIEVE IT'S COMMERCIALLY



        18  NECESSARY TO OFFER WINDOWS 98 ON THE PC'S THEY SEND



        19  TO--THEY SELL TO END USERS.  THE PARTICULAR REFERENCE



        20  THERE ARE TO DEPOSITIONS OF PEOPLE WHO ARE TALKING ABOUT



        21  SALES TO HOME CONSUMERS, BUT THE SAME THING WOULD BE TRUE



        22  FOR BUSINESS.



        23  Q.   WELL, ISN'T THAT, IN FACT, NOT TRUE, AND ISN'T IT,



        24  FACT, THE CASE THAT THE TESTIMONY YOU CITE IN YOUR REPORT



        25  SUGGESTS THAT PC OEM'S DO NOT REGARD IT AS COMMERCIALLY�
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         1  NECESSARY TO OFFER WINDOWS 98 ON MACHINES INTO THE



         2  CORPORATE MARKET, THAT THEY WILL PUT WHATEVER SOFTWARE THE



         3  USER DEMANDS; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



         4  A.   NO.  I THINK THE TESTIMONY THAT YOU MAY BE REFERRING



         5  TO LATER ON SAYS THAT OEM'S WHO ARE SELLING INTO THE



         6  CORPORATE MARKET WISH TO BE ABLE TO IMPOSE--TO INCORPORATE



         7  A CHOICE OF APPLICATION SOFTWARE; IN PARTICULAR, WHETHER



         8  OR NOT TO INCLUDE A BROWSER OR NOT.



         9           THERE ARE SOME--IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THERE



        10  ARE SOME CORPORATIONS WHICH WISH TO BUY A PC WITHOUT AN



        11  OPERATING SYSTEM AT ALL.  AND IN FACT, I THINK ABOUT 14



        12  PERCENT ARE SHIPPED NAKED.  BUT THAT DOESN'T MEAN THAT



        13  WHEN THEY DO OWN AN OPERATING SYSTEM, THAT IT'S NOT A



        14  COMMERCIAL NECESSITY FOR THE OEM TO PROVIDE WINDOWS.



        15  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO MAL RANSOM IS, SIR?



        16  A.   YES.



        17  Q.   IN FACT, YOU CITE HIS DEPOSITION--BOTH OF HIS



        18  DEPOSITIONS A NUMBER OF TIMES, DO YOU NOT?



        19  A.   YES.



        20  Q.   WOULD YOU TELL THE COURT WHO MAL RANSOM IS?



        21  A.   HE'S AT PACKARD BELL.



        22  Q.   LET ME HAND YOU PAGE NINE, OR ALL OF HIS CID



        23  DEPOSITION TAKEN BY THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND REFER



        24  YOUR ATTENTION TO PAGE NINE OF THAT DOCUMENT.  FOR SOME



        25  REASON, THE DOCUMENT, AS WE RECEIVED IT FROM THE JUSTICE�
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         1  DEPARTMENT, IS NOT PAGINATED, BUT I HAVE BEEN HELPFUL AND



         2  TABBED THE PAGE.



         3  A.   WHERE WERE YOU HELPFUL?



         4  Q.   PAGE NINE, VERY TOP OF THE PAGE.  LOOK AT LINE ONE



         5  WHERE HE SAYS, "LET ME COME BACK AND ADJUST SOMETHING."



         6  A.   I'M SORRY.  I'M LOOKING FOR YOUR NINE.



         7  Q.   I SAID TAB.  I TABBED THE PAGE, SIR.



         8           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT)



         9  Q.   WHERE HE SAYS, (READING):



        10                "LET ME COME BACK AND ADJUST SOMETHING.  IF



        11           A COMMERCIAL CUSTOMER SAYS TO US, QUOTE, WE HAVE



        12           A PROPRIETARY OPERATING SYSTEM WHERE WE USE UNIX,



        13           WILL YOU LOAD THAT FOR US, CLOSED QUOTED, WE WILL



        14           ABSOLUTELY DO THAT."



        15           DO YOU SEE THAT?



        16  A.   YES.



        17  Q.   AND IF YOU NEED TO GO BACK IN HIS TESTIMONY, PLEASE



        18  DO, BUT HE IS ADJUSTING SOMETHING, IN HIS WORDS, TO



        19  CONTRAST WHAT HE HAD TESTIFIED TO EARLIER IN THE



        20  DEPOSITION ABOUT WHAT THEY BELIEVED COMMERCIALLY NECESSARY



        21  FOR THE HOME MARKET; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        22  A.   THAT WOULD BE MY UNDERSTANDING, THAT WHAT HE IS



        23  SAYING IS THAT FOR CERTAIN COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS WHO



        24  SPECIFICALLY DO NOT WANT AN OPERATING SYSTEM INSTALLED BY



        25  THE OEM, THAT THEY--THEY ARE ABLE AND WILLING TO SHIP THE�
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         1  MACHINE NAKED TO THAT CUSTOMER.



         2  Q.   THAT'S NOT WHAT HE SAYS, SIR.  DOESN'T HE SAY THEY



         3  WILL LOAD UNIX OR THEY WILL LOAD WINDOWS 3.1?



         4           HE DOESN'T SAY ANYTHING ABOUT A NAKED MACHINE,



         5  DOES HE, SIR?



         6  A.   ACTUALLY, YOU'RE RIGHT.  I SHOULD PROBABLY



         7  LOOK--THAT'S CORRECT.  HE HAS--I ASSUME THIS IS THE MDA



         8  CLAUSE WITH MICROSOFT.  HE IS NOT ALLOWED TO SHIP A NAKED



         9  MACHINE.



        10  Q.   AND HE'S DOING WHAT HIS CUSTOMERS WANT HIM TO DO, IS



        11  HE NOT?



        12  A.   YES.



        13  Q.   AND, IN FACT, THAT COMPORTS WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING



        14  OF THE WAY THE, AT LEAST, BUSINESS END OF THIS MARKET



        15  WORKS, THAT PC OEM'S WILL SHIP WHATEVER OPERATING SYSTEM



        16  THE CORPORATE USER DEMANDS; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        17  A.   SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON SHIPPING NAKED MACHINES,



        18  YES.



        19  Q.   AND, IN FACT, OEM'S CONTINUE TO SHIP WINDOWS 95,



        20  WINDOWS 3.1, MS-DOS AND OTHER OPERATING SYSTEMS BY THE



        21  THOUSANDS OF UNITS TO CORPORATE CONSUMERS WHO DEMAND THEM;



        22  ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        23  A.   THERE ARE GOOD REASONS WHY CERTAIN CORPORATE



        24  CUSTOMERS DO NOT WANT THE LATEST WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM.



        25  THEY MAY WANT ONE MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM, THEY MAY�
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         1  WANT ANOTHER MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM.



         2           THEY CAN CHOOSE AMONGST SEVERAL DIFFERENT



         3  MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEMS.



         4  Q.   GIVEN OUR DISCUSSION OF THE LAST FEW MINUTES, DON'T



         5  YOU THINK THAT THE TRUTHFUL AND ACCURATE SENTENCE WITH



         6  WHICH TO CONCLUDE PARAGRAPH 25 SHOULD HAVE READ SOMETHING



         7  LIKE, "OEM'S BELIEVE IT IS COMMERCIALLY NECESSARY TO OFFER



         8  THE OPERATING SYSTEM TO END USERS THAT THE USERS DEMAND"?



         9  A.   I THINK THAT IF THERE IS SOMETHING COMING OUT OF THIS



        10  DISCUSSION, I THINK IT WOULD BE, "OEM'S BELIEVE THIS IS



        11  COMMERCIALLY NECESSARY TO BE ABLE TO OFFER A MICROSOFT



        12  OPERATING SYSTEM ON THE PC'S THAT THEY SELL TO END USERS."



        13  Q.   OKAY, SIR.  HOW LARGE IS THE BUSINESS SEGMENT VERSUS



        14  THE HOME SEGMENT IN TERMS OF UNITS SHIPPED TODAY?



        15  A.   I CAN'T GIVE YOU AN EXACT ANSWER.



        16  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY SENSE EVEN IF IT'S NOT AN EXACT



        17  SENSE?



        18  A.   NO.  I WOULD HAVE TO SPECULATE.



        19  Q.   YOU TESTIFIED THAT IT'S IMPORTANT TO UNDERSTAND THAT



        20  THERE ARE DIFFERENCES IN DEMAND CHARACTERISTICS IN



        21  PURCHASE DECISIONS.



        22           IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY YOU DIDN'T TRY TO DETERMINE



        23  WHAT THE RELATIVE SIZE OF THOSE TWO DIFFERING PURCHASE



        24  CATEGORIES OR DEMAND CATEGORIES WERE?



        25  A.   NO.  I'M SAYING THAT, YOU KNOW, I HAVE OBVIOUSLY SEEN�
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         1  THE SPLIT BETWEEN HOME AND BUSINESS.  BUT, YOU KNOW,



         2  OFFHAND, I CAN'T REMEMBER WHAT THE RATIO IS.



         3  Q.   WOULD YOU GO TO PARAGRAPH 30 OF YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR.



         4  IT'S ON PAGE 15.  YOUR TESTIMONY IS THAT THE BENCHMARK, IN



         5  YOUR WORDS, BY WHICH TO DETERMINE WHETHER MICROSOFT HAS



         6  MONOPOLY POWER IN WHAT YOU CALL THE PC OPERATING SYSTEM



         7  MARKET IS WHETHER IT CHARGES MORE THAN THE COMPETITIVE



         8  PRICE FOR WINDOWS 98; IS THAT CORRECT?



         9  A.   THAT'S NOT A QUOTE, THAT'S FOR SURE.



        10  Q.   THE WORD "BENCHMARK" IS YOUR WORD; IS THAT RIGHT?



        11  A.   WELL, BENCHMARK IS THERE, YES.



        12  Q.   DID I MISSTATE YOUR TESTIMONY IN MY QUESTION?



        13  A.   PROBABLY.



        14  Q.   I MISSTATED YOUR TESTIMONY?



        15  A.   IT CERTAINLY WASN'T A QUOTE.



        16  Q.   WAS IT INACCURATE?



        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  YOU WOULD HAVE TO REPEAT IT AGAIN.  WE



        18  WOULD HAVE TO FIGURE OUT THE EXTENT TO WHICH IT WAS A



        19  MISCHARACTERIZATION.



        20  Q.   LET'S JUST MOVE ALONG, THEN.



        21           NOW, YOU SAY THE QUESTION IS WHETHER IN YOUR



        22  TESTIMONY--AND I'M PARAPHRASING SIR--YOUR TESTIMONY IS



        23  WHETHER A HYPOTHETICAL MONOPOLIST COULD PROFITABLY



        24  INCREASE THE PRICE ABOVE THE PREVAILING PRICE; IS THAT



        25  RIGHT?�
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         1  A.   WHAT I SAY IS THAT THE QUESTION IS WHETHER A



         2  HYPOTHETICAL MONOPOLIST OF THE CANDIDATE MARKET CAN



         3  PROFITABLY CHARGE A PRICE IN EXCESS OF THE COMPETITIVE



         4  LEVEL.  THAT'S WHAT I SAY.



         5  Q.   OKAY.  AND IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT COULD



         6  CHARGE MORE THAN IT DOES NOW OR THAT IT'S ALREADY CHARGING



         7  A MONOPOLY PRICE, OR IS IT BOTH OF THOSE THINGS?



         8  A.   THE LATTER.



         9  Q.   IT IS ALREADY CHARGING A MONOPOLY PRICE?



        10  A.   YES.



        11  Q.   SO YOUR TESTIMONY--YOU DO NOT BELIEVE THAT MICROSOFT



        12  COULD INCREASE THE PRICE OF WINDOWS 98 WITHOUT INCURRING



        13  OR INVITING SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITION ON NEW ENTRIES; IS



        14  THAT RIGHT?



        15  A.   NO.



        16  Q.   THAT ISN'T RIGHT?



        17  A.   NO.



        18  Q.   THEN I'M CONFUSED.



        19  A.   THAT'S ALL RIGHT.



        20  Q.   CAN MICROSOFT INCREASE THE PRICE OF WINDOWS 98



        21  WITHOUT FEAR OF INCURRING SUBSTANTIAL NEW ENTRY?



        22  A.   ALL INDICATIONS ARE THAT IF MICROSOFT INCREASED THE



        23  PRICE OF WINDOWS 98, THAT IT WOULD NOT FACE SUBSTANTIAL



        24  NEW ENTRY.  AT LEAST THERE IS NO INDICATION WHERE THAT



        25  ENTRY COMES FROM.�
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         1  Q.   WHY DOESN'T MICROSOFT KEEP RATCHETING UP THE PRICE OF



         2  WINDOWS UNTIL IT SEE WHERE THE NEW ENTRY IS GOING TO COME



         3  FROM?



         4  A.   BECAUSE IT'S ALREADY AT A PROFIT-MAXIMIZING LEVEL.



         5  Q.   WHEN DID IT OBTAIN A PROFIT-MAXIMIZING LEVEL FOR ITS



         6  PRICES?



         7  A.   I ASSUME IT HAS ALWAYS BEEN CHOOSING A PRICE WHICH IS



         8  PROFIT-MAXIMIZING.  THERE IS NO INDICATION THAT I HAVE



         9  THAT MICROSOFT IS DOING ANYTHING OTHER THAN MAXIMIZING



        10  PROFITS.



        11  Q.   WHEN DID IT START CHARGING A MONOPOLY PRICE?



        12  A.   IT HAS BEEN EARNING UNUSUALLY HIGH RATES OF RETURN



        13  FOR QUITE SOME TIME.  I THINK THAT'S THE QUESTION THAT YOU



        14  ASKED ME BEFORE.



        15  Q.   CAN YOU DO BETTER THAN QUITE SOME TIME?



        16  A.   THE NINETIES.



        17  Q.   NOW, YOU CITE AT THE TOP STARTING PARAGRAPH 33 ABOUT



        18  SWITCHING COSTS.  DO YOU SEE THAT?  AND--EXCUSE



        19  ME--WHETHER PRICE INCREASES WOULD RESULT IN SIGNIFICANT



        20  SWITCHINGS BY OEM'S.



        21  A.   YES.



        22  Q.   NOW, IN DETERMINING THE LIKELIHOOD THAT OEM'S WOULD



        23  SWITCH OPERATING SYSTEMS, I TAKE IT YOU TOOK INTO ACCOUNT



        24  THE AVERAGE PRODUCT LIFE CYCLE FOR INTEL MICROPROCESSORS?



        25  A.   IN DETERMINING WHETHER OR NOT OEM'S WOULD SWITCH, I�
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         1  AM REFERRING TO TESTIMONY FROM OEM'S NOW.  PRESUMABLY,



         2  THEY TOOK INTO ACCOUNT WHATEVER THEY TOOK INTO ACCOUNT.



         3  Q.   BUT WASN'T THE TESTIMONY THEY WERE ASKED, JUST TO



         4  PARAPHRASE, IF MICROSOFT RAISED ITS PRICE TEN PERCENT ON



         5  TUESDAY, WOULD YOU SWITCH TO A NEW OPERATING SYSTEM



         6  WEDNESDAY?  ISN'T THAT BASICALLY WHAT THEY WERE ASKED?



         7  A.   NO.



         8  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN ANY TESTIMONY IN THE RECORD OF THE OEM



         9  DEPOSITIONS THAT SUGGESTS THAT, OVER THE LONG TERM, THEY



        10  WOULD NOT OR COULD NOT SWITCH?



        11  A.   FOR THE OEM'S TO SWITCH, AS I THINK SEVERAL OF US



        12  POINTED OUT, AWAY FROM THE PC PLATFORM WOULD BE ENORMOUSLY



        13  EXPENSIVE.  SEVERAL OF THEM HAVE STATED THAT.  AS A



        14  PRACTICAL MATTER, THEY WOULD NOT SWITCH EVEN IN RESPONSE



        15  TO A FURTHER PRICE INCREASE.



        16  Q.   MY QUESTION, DR. WARREN-BOULTON--I'M TRYING TO BE



        17  PRECISE HERE, SIR--IS:  WERE ANY OF THEM ASKED ABOUT



        18  LONG-TERM SWITCHING AS OPPOSED TO A VERY SPECIFIC QUESTION



        19  ABOUT WHETHER THEY WOULD SWITCH IMMEDIATELY IN RESPONSE TO



        20  A SHORT-TERM PRICE INCREASE OF TEN PERCENT?



        21  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO GO BACK AND LOOK, BUT USUALLY THOSE



        22  QUESTIONS WHEN ASKED BY DOJ, PEOPLE ASKED THE QUESTION IN



        23  TERMS OF OR THEY MAKE THE CONTEXT CLEAR THAT THEY'RE



        24  ASKING THE QUESTIONS, WOULD YOU SHIFT WITHIN A ONE- OR



        25  TWO-YEAR TIME PERIOD.  THAT'S THE STANDARD WAY THOSE�
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         1  QUESTIONS ARE ASKED.



         2  Q.   AND THAT IS WHAT YOU BELIEVE THE TESTIMONY WAS IN



         3  THIS CASE?



         4  A.   THAT'S WHAT I THINK IT WOULD INQUIRE, WHICH IS IF YOU



         5  RAISE THE PRICE BY TEN PERCENT, WOULD YOU SWITCH.



         6  Q.   OKAY.  GO TO PARAGRAPH 36, PLEASE.  HERE YOU TALK



         7  ABOUT SWITCHING COSTS--YOU SEE THAT?--AMONG OTHER THINGS.



         8  A.   YES.



         9  Q.   HAVE YOU DONE ANY ANALYSIS TO QUANTIFY THE COST



        10  SWITCHING YOU PURPORT TO DESCRIBE?



        11  A.   NO, EXCEPT THAT THE MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS, AGAIN, REFER



        12  TO THE COST OF SWITCHING AS BEING ENORMOUS.



        13  Q.   AREN'T THERE COSTS OF SWITCHING FROM ONE MICROSOFT



        14  OPERATING SYSTEM TO ANOTHER?



        15  A.   THERE ARE, AND MOST OF US HAVE GONE THROUGH THEM.  I



        16  THINK MICROSOFT DOES IT BEST, AND IT'S BEST TO MAKE THOSE,



        17  SHALL WE SAY, SWITCHING COSTS OR UPGRADING COSTS AS LOW AS



        18  POSSIBLE.  I THINK IT'S OF CONTINUOUS CONCERN ON THEIR



        19  PART.



        20  Q.   HOW DOES MICROSOFT KEEP SWITCHING COSTS DOWN,



        21  DR. WARREN-BOULTON?



        22  A.   I'M NOT SURE IT KEEPS THEM DOWN, BUT CERTAINLY TRIES



        23  TO MAKE THE UPGRADE PROCESS AS EASY AS POSSIBLE.  IT'S, TO



        24  A LARGE EXTENT, IN THE BUSINESS OF SELLING UPGRADES.  AND



        25  SO, IF PEOPLE ARE UNWILLING TO UPGRADE BECAUSE THEIR�
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         1  MACHINE CRASHES OR SOMETHING LIKE THAT, THAT IS A



         2  PERFECTLY LEGITIMATE BUSINESS PROBLEM.



         3  Q.   DID YOU TESTIFY JUST NOW THAT MICROSOFT KEEPS THE



         4  COSTS IN TERMS OF PRICE OF UPGRADES LOW TO TAKE INTO



         5  ACCOUNT SWITCHING COSTS?



         6  A.   NO.  WHAT I WAS TALKING ABOUT IS THAT MICROSOFT'S



         7  CONCERN, IN A FAIR NUMBER OF DOCUMENTS, IS MAKING IT AS



         8  EASY AS POSSIBLE FOR PEOPLE WHO HAVE, SAY, WINDOWS 3 TO



         9  MOVE TO 95.  IF YOU HAVE 95 TO MOVE TO 98, AND THAT I



        10  REGARD THAT AS A PERFECTLY NORMAL CONCERN.  MICROSOFT HAS



        11  NO INTEREST IN SIMPLY IMPOSING COSTS ON ITS CONSUMERS.



        12  Q.   MY QUESTION, DR. WARREN-BOULTON, IS HOW DO THEY MAKE



        13  IT EASY OR HOW DO THEY SEEK TO MINIMIZE THE COST OF



        14  SWITCHING?



        15  A.   IT'S TRYING TO DESIGN, FOR EXAMPLE, WINDOWS 98 IN



        16  SUCH A WAY THAT MAKING THE INSTALLATION OF WINDOWS 98 TO



        17  SOMEBODY WHO HAS WINDOWS 95 EASIER THAN IT WAS WHEN PEOPLE



        18  SWITCH FROM WINDOWS 3.X TO WINDOWS 95.



        19  Q.   CAN YOU TELL ME HOW IT HAS DONE THAT.



        20  A.   YOU MEAN TECHNICALLY?  NO.  HOW IT MAKES IT EASIER,



        21  YOUR MACHINE DOESN'T CRASH AS MUCH.  IT'S SHORTER TIME,



        22  PRESUMABLY, TO REPLACE.  I HAVE REPLACED WINDOWS 95 WITH



        23  WINDOWS 98.  THAT'S THE ONLY ONE I HAVE DONE.



        24  Q.   SO, MICROSOFT'S PRINCIPAL MEANS OF ADDRESSING THE



        25  SWITCHING COSTS IS TO MAKE THE PRODUCT IMPROVED IN SOME�
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         1  RESPECTS THAT PEOPLE WOULD BE LIKELY TO INCUR THOSE COSTS;



         2  IS THAT RIGHT?



         3  A.   THAT'S NOT THE CONTEXT IN WHICH WE ARE TALKING ABOUT



         4  HERE.  IF YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT UPGRADING, MICROSOFT--I'M



         5  NOT SURE OTHER THAN TO CONTINUE TO REPEAT WHAT I'M SAYING.



         6  THEY, MICROSOFT, HAS AN OBVIOUS INTEREST IN FACILITATING



         7  THE TRANSITION, SAY, FROM 95 TO 98.



         8  Q.   HOW DO OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM VENDORS SEEK TO



         9  MINIMIZE SWITCHING COSTS OF SWITCHING AWAY FROM ANY



        10  MICROSOFT-BASED OPERATING SYSTEM?



        11  A.   WELL, THE MAIN ONE, OF COURSE, I MEAN IN TERMS OF



        12  PROSPECTS IN THE FUTURE IS THE DEVELOPMENT OF A



        13  CROSS-PLATFORM SET OF APPLICATIONS.  IF WE ARE ASKING THE



        14  QUESTION, "HOW CAN PROVIDERS OF OPERATING SYSTEMS MINIMIZE



        15  SWITCHING COSTS AWAY FROM WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEMS," THE



        16  ANSWER IS THROUGH HAVING A VIABLE BROWSER INDUSTRY WHICH,



        17  COMBINED WITH A LARGE STOCK OF JAVA CROSS-PLATFORM



        18  APPLICATIONS, WILL MEAN THAT SOMEBODY WHO HAS--IS OFFERING



        19  A NON-WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM TO CONSUMERS WILL BE ABLE



        20  TO SAY TO THOSE CONSUMERS, "IF YOU USE MY OPERATING SYSTEM



        21  INSTEAD OF THE MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM, YOU WILL NOT



        22  HAVE TO THROW AWAY ALL YOUR OLD APPLICATIONS.  YOU WILL BE



        23  ABLE TO SWITCH OVER TO MY OPERATING SYSTEM, WHICH IS



        24  BETTER IN A NUMBER OF OTHER SPECIALIZED DIMENSIONS, WITH



        25  MINIMAL SWITCHING COSTS."�

                                                           78



         1           BASICALLY, I GUESS I WOULD REGARD THE ANSWER TO



         2  YOUR QUESTION BEING A VIABLE INDEPENDENT CROSS-PLATFORM



         3  BROWSER INDUSTRY COMBINED WITH JAVA APPLICATIONS.



         4  Q.   THAT'S WHAT YOU REGARD, BUT MY QUESTION WAS:  WHAT



         5  ARE PEOPLE ACTUALLY DOING IN THE MARKETPLACE TODAY?  NOT



         6  IN THE WORLD OF THEORY, NOT IN THE ECONOMIST'S CHALKBOARD



         7  WORLD.  WHAT ARE THE VENDORS OF ALTERNATIVE OPERATING



         8  SYSTEMS ACTUALLY DOING TODAY TO MINIMIZE SWITCHING COSTS?



         9  A.   I THINK THAT, AS I UNDERSTAND WHAT THEY'RE DOING, IS



        10  THEY ARE TRYING TO PROMOTE THE USE OF PURE JAVA IN



        11  APPLICATIONS.  AND IN PARTICULAR, NETSCAPE IS SUPPORTING



        12  CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS.



        13  Q.   NAME ONE OPERATING SYSTEM VENDOR OTHER THAN MICROSOFT



        14  THAT IS PROMOTING CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS.



        15  A.   THERE IS CERTAINLY TESTIMONY FROM, I BELIEVE IT IS,



        16  SCO THAT TALKS ABOUT HOW THE AVAILABILITY OF JAVA



        17  APPLICATIONS IS CRITICAL FOR THE FUTURE OF IT AS AN



        18  INDEPENDENT OPERATING SYSTEM.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT SCO IS



        19  DOING, ITSELF, TO FACILITATE THAT.  I THINK THE MAJOR



        20  EFFORT IN THAT DIRECTION IS GOING ON IN SUN IN JAVA, BOTH



        21  BY PRODUCING--SUPPLYING THE JAVA PRODUCT AND BY DOING ITS



        22  BEST TO INSURE THAT IT REMAINS A SINGLE CROSS-PLATFORM



        23  LANGUAGE.



        24  Q.   WHAT IS SCO, SIR?



        25  A.   SCO IS A SANTA CRUZ OPERATING SYSTEM.�
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         1  Q.   AND AS YOU HAVE DEFINED THE MARKET, THEY'RE NOT IN



         2  THE PC OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET; ISN'T THAT CORRECT, SIR?



         3  A.   I DEFINE THE OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET AS RUNNING ON



         4  THE PC OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET.



         5  Q.   IS IT NOT CORRECT THAT SCO DOES NOT LICENSE ANY



         6  OPERATING SYSTEM SOFTWARE TO DESKTOP MACHINES AT ALL IN



         7  THAT ALL THEIR LICENSING IS CONFINED TO THE SERVER MARKET;



         8  ISN'T THAT CORRECT, SIR?



         9  A.   I THINK THAT IS CURRENTLY CORRECT.  SCO HAS



        10  RETREATED.  IT WAS ORIGINALLY--AS I RECALL THE SCO



        11  TESTIMONY, IT IS THAT THEY ORIGINALLY WERE IN THE DESKTOP



        12  AND SERVER MARKET, BUT THE PROBLEM THAT THEY'RE FACING IS



        13  THE LACK OF GENERAL-PURPOSE APPLICATIONS IN THE DESKTOP



        14  MARKET, HAS MEANT THAT IT HAS BASICALLY RETREATED TO THE



        15  SERVER MARKET.



        16           SO, IF YOU ASKED TODAY ARE THEY NO LONGER SELLING



        17  OPERATING SYSTEMS OR MANY OPERATING SYSTEMS INTO THE PC



        18  OPERATING SYSTEM MARKET, THE ANSWER IS YES.  BUT THE



        19  REASON HAS TO DO WITH THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY.



        20  Q.   ISN'T IT CORRECT, SIR, THAT LINUX VENDORS, OMEGA



        21  VENDORS AND B-O-S VENDORS ARE DOING EVERYTHING THEY CAN TO



        22  REDUCE THE APPLICATIONS BARRIER TO ENTRY BY PROMOTING



        23  APPLICATIONS THAT LOOK THE SAME, THAT REQUIRE THE SAME



        24  COMMANDS, AND WILL BE INTIMATELY FAMILIAR TO ANY USER WHO



        25  HAS EVER USED WINDOWS?  ISN'T THAT, IN FACT, WHAT PEOPLE�
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         1  ARE DOING TODAY?



         2  A.   I'M NOT SURE--



         3  Q.   ISN'T THAT THE MOST EFFECTIVE WAY TO REDUCE THE



         4  SWITCHING COSTS, SIMPLY CREATE APPLICATIONS ON OTHER



         5  OPERATING SYSTEMS THAT LOOK LIKE WHAT USERS HAVE ALREADY



         6  USED?



         7  A.   I THINK WE ARE NOW MIXING UP TWO THINGS, IF I



         8  UNDERSTAND YOUR QUESTION.  ONE IS A QUESTION OF



         9  APPLICATIONS WHICH HAS TO DO WITH API'S.  THE OTHER SEEMS



        10  TO BE WHAT YOU ARE JUST RAISING, WHICH IS A SIMILAR USER



        11  INTERFACE.  IF YOU LOOK AT SWITCHING COSTS IN THE WAY IN



        12  THE PARAGRAPH THAT WE HAVE BEEN DISCUSSING, YOU'RE TALKING



        13  ABOUT NOW, I THINK, ABOUT SWITCHING COSTS INCURRED BY



        14  USERS IN THE SENSE OF HAVING TO MOVE TO A DIFFERENT USER



        15  INTERFACE.  THAT'S VERY DIFFERENT.



        16           I JUST WANT TO MAKE CLEAR WE HAVE BEEN TALKING



        17  ALMOST EXCLUSIVELY ABOUT SWITCHING COSTS IN TERMS OF



        18  CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS OR THE ABSENCE OF



        19  CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS.



        20  Q.   RIGHT.  BUT WHAT I'M TRYING TO ASK YOU, SIR, IS



        21  WHETHER ANYBODY OTHER THAN YOU AND MAYBE DR. FISHER TALK



        22  ABOUT SWITCHING COSTS IN THOSE TERMS.



        23  A.   SWITCHING COSTS IN WHAT TERMS?



        24  Q.   THE TERMS OF CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS AS OPPOSED



        25  TO DIFFERENT INTERFACES OR DIFFERENT OPERATING SYSTEMS AND�
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         1  WHAT PEOPLE IN THE REAL WORLD WOULD ACTUALLY DO.



         2  A.   I'M AT A LITTLE BIT OF A LOSS.  THE MICROSOFT



         3  DOCUMENTS--I MEAN, MANY OF THEM TALK ABOUT THE--WELL,



         4  ENOUGH.



         5  Q.   GO TO PARAGRAPH 37, THAT PORTION OF THE PARAGRAPH



         6  THAT'S ON PAGE 18 OF YOUR TESTIMONY.



         7           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)



         8  A.   YES.



         9  Q.   YOU TALK HERE THAT YOU SAY THAT THE PRICE ELASTICITY



        10  OF DERIVE DEMAND FOR PC OPERATING SYSTEMS MUST BE VERY LOW



        11  FOR AT LEAST A SIGNIFICANT PRICE RANGE ABOVE THE



        12  COMPETITIVE PRICE FOR PC OPERATING SYSTEMS.  DO YOU SEE



        13  THAT?



        14  A.   YES.



        15  Q.   OKAY.



        16  A.   WELL, I'M ASSUMING I DO.  HANG ON.



        17  Q.   AND YOUR BASIS FOR THAT TESTIMONY--



        18  A.   HOW FAR DOWN ARE YOU?  I'M SORRY.  WHERE ARE YOU?



        19  Q.   THREE LINES UP FROM THE BEGINNING OF PARAGRAPH 38,



        20  SIR.



        21  A.   YES.



        22  Q.   YOU SEE THAT?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   WOULD YOU TELL THE COURT WHAT YOU MEAN BY



        25  CROSS-ELASTICITY OF DERIVE DEMAND--THE PRICE ELASTICITY OF�
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         1  DERIVE COMMAND?



         2  A.   THE PRICE ELASTICITY OF DERIVE DEMAND IS SIMPLY THE



         3  DEMAND ELASTICITY FOR A PRODUCT WHICH IS, ITSELF, DERIVED.



         4  IT'S, IN THIS CASE, THE ELASTICITY OF DEMAND FOR THE



         5  OPERATING SYSTEM.  AS WE DISCUSSED BEFORE, THE DEMAND FROM



         6  THE OPERATING SYSTEM IS, IN TURN, DERIVED FROM THE DEMAND



         7  FOR A PC.



         8  Q.   DOESN'T THAT MEAN THAT MICROSOFT COULD RAISE, IN YOUR



         9  VIEW, COULD RAISE THE PRICE OF WINDOWS 98 ABOVE ITS



        10  CURRENT PRICE BY A SUBSTANTIAL MARGIN?



        11  A.   COULD IT OR WOULD IT FIND IT PROFITABLE?  OBVIOUSLY,



        12  IT COULD.



        13  Q.   WOULD IT FIND IT PROFITABLE?



        14  A.   I CAN ASSUME THAT IT WOULD NOT BECAUSE IT HASN'T.



        15  Q.   NOW, THE TESTIMONY YOU CITE FOR MR. BROWNRIGG--DO YOU



        16  SEE THAT, FOOTNOTE 17?



        17  A.   YES.



        18  Q.   --ABOUT SWITCHING COSTS, HE'S NOT TALKING ABOUT



        19  SWITCHING FROM ONE OPERATING SYSTEM TO ANOTHER, IS HE,



        20  SIR?



        21  A.   HE'S TALKING ABOUT THE OEM'S' COST, IF ITS ONLY



        22  ALTERNATIVE, SHALL WE SAY, WAS TO SWITCH AWAY FROM AN



        23  INTEL-BASED PROCESSOR.  I'M NOT EVEN SURE WHERE HE WOULD



        24  GO WHEN THERE ARE NO MORE EVEN MACINTOSH CLONES.



        25  Q.   IN FACT, WASN'T HE ASKED SPECIFICALLY ABOUT WHAT IT�
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         1  WOULD COST GATEWAY TO SWITCH FROM INTEL TO MACINTOSH



         2  ARCHITECTURE?



         3  A.   I THINK THAT'S PROBABLY THE REASONABLE ALTERNATIVE,



         4  AND THE ANSWER IS IT'S A VERY, VERY EXPENSIVE PROPOSITION.



         5  Q.   BUT THE SWITCHING COSTS OF AN OEM SWITCHING TO



         6  ANOTHER PC-BASED OR INTEL-BASED OPERATING SYSTEM ARE FAR,



         7  FAR LOWER THAN RETOOLING THE FACTORIES TO BE BUILT ON



         8  ANOTHER CHIP ARCHITECTURE; ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



         9  A.   CAN YOU ASK ME THAT AGAIN.



        10  Q.   THE SWITCHING COSTS OF SWITCHING FOR THE PC OEM FROM



        11  ONE OPERATING SYSTEM TO ANOTHER, ASSUMING THAT BOTH



        12  OPERATING SYSTEMS RUN ON THE INTEL INSTRUCTION SET--



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   --IS MUCH LOWER THAN THE RATHER EXTREME EXAMPLE THAT



        15  MR. BROWNRIGG WAS BEING ASKED ABOUT; NAMELY, SWITCHING



        16  GATEWAY'S FACTORIES FROM INTEL CHIPS TO MAC CHIPS OR POWER



        17  PC CHIPS?



        18  A.   THAT'S RIGHT.  AND THAT'S ONE OF THE REASONS THAT THE



        19  MARKET IS DEFINED AS THE INTEL BASE.  IT'S THE PC



        20  OPERATING SYSTEM, BECAUSE THAT IS A NATURAL BREAK IN, IF



        21  YOU WILL LIKE, IN THE MARKET BECAUSE THOSE COSTS ARE



        22  LARGE.



        23  Q.   WHAT WOULD BE THE SWITCHING COSTS TO A PC OEM OF



        24  STARTING TO SHIP LINUX?



        25  A.   LITERALLY IN TERMS OF PUTTING LINUX ON, VERY, VERY�
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         1  LITTLE.  IN TERMS OF GETTING ANYBODY TO BUY THEIR



         2  MACHINES, QUITE A BIT.



         3           THE PROBLEM WITH SWITCHING TO LINUX IS NOT



         4  PUTTING LINUX, YOU KNOW, ON A PC.  IT'S GETTING PEOPLE TO



         5  BUY THE PC WITH THE LINUX ON IT.



         6  Q.   AND THAT'S NOT A QUESTION OF SWITCHING COSTS AT ALL,



         7  IS IT, SIR?



         8  A.   THAT'S A QUESTION OF SWITCHING COSTS TO THE CONSUMER.



         9  THE REASON WHY THE CONSUMER DOESN'T WANT TO BUY THE PC



        10  WITH A LINUX ON IT IS NOT BECAUSE IT'S EXPENSIVE FOR THE



        11  MANUFACTURER TO PUT LINUX ON IT.  IT'S EXPENSIVE OR



        12  UNDESIRABLE, FOR WHATEVER REASON, FOR THE CONSUMER TO USE



        13  IT.



        14  Q.   AND THAT WOULD BE BECAUSE OF WHAT, SIR?



        15  A.   PREPONDERATELY BECAUSE OF THE FAR, FAR LARGER STOCK



        16  OF APPLICATIONS THAT ARE AVAILABLE ON WINDOWS AND THE



        17  OTHER NETWORK FUNCTIONALITIES INVOLVED IN THE OPERATING



        18  SYSTEM MARKET.



        19  Q.   AT THE END OF PARAGRAPH 39--AND I'M ON PAGE 19,



        20  SIR--YOU CITE, AMONG OTHERS, THE TESTIMONY OF MR. RANSOM



        21  ABOUT WHOM WE HAD SOME CONVERSATION A FEW MOMENTS AGO.  DO



        22  YOU SEE THAT?



        23  A.   YES.



        24  Q.   AND MR. RANSOM TESTIFIED THAT PACKARD-BELL CONSIDERED



        25  SHIPPING OS/2 A FEW YEARS AGO, DIDN'T HE, SIR?�
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         1  A.   THAT'S MY RECOLLECTION, YES.



         2  Q.   AND ALTHOUGH YOU DON'T QUOTE IT IN YOUR TESTIMONY, HE



         3  SAID THAT THEIR DECISION OR PACKARD-BELL'S DECISION NOT TO



         4  SHIP OS/2 HAD ABSOLUTELY NOTHING TO DO WITH SWITCHING



         5  COSTS OR THE PRESENCE OF APPLICATIONS FOR OS/2; ISN'T THAT



         6  RIGHT?



         7  A.   WELL, I SAW A LOT OF DEPOSITIONS, AND MAYBE I'M



         8  RECALLING THE WRONG ONE--WHO KNOWS?--BUT THE DEPOSITION



         9  THAT I RECALL IS ONE IN WHICH THE DECISION WAS MADE NOT TO



        10  USE OS/2 ONCE THE OEM DISCOVERED THAT IBM SAID TO THEM,



        11  "LOOK, YOU CAN SHIP WITH OS/2, BUT YOU HAVE TO SHIP WITH



        12  WINDOWS AS WELL BECAUSE WE SIMPLY DON'T SUPPORT WINDOWS 95



        13  APPLICATIONS."



        14           SO, WHEN THE OEM DISCOVERS THAT THERE IS NOT VERY



        15  MUCH POINT IN SHIPPING WITH OS/2 IF THE USER IS GOING TO



        16  WANT A WINDOWS ON IT AS WELL.  BUT I CAN'T TELL YOU IF



        17  THAT'S MR. RANSOM OR NOT.



        18  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHOSE TESTIMONY THAT WAS?  I WILL TELL



        19  YOU IT'S NOT MR. RANSOM'S.  I WILL SHOW YOU MR. RANSOM'S



        20  IN A MINUTE.  CAN YOU TELL ME WHO IT WAS THAT SAID



        21  SOMEBODY SAID YOU WOULD HAVE TO SHIP WINDOWS 95 TO?



        22  A.   NOT OFFHAND.



        23           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I MOVE TO STRIKE THE



        24  RESPONSE, PLEASE.  HE DOESN'T KNOW WHO SAID THE SUPPOSED--



        25           THE COURT:  MOTION TO STRIKE IS DENIED.�
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         1           MR. LACOVARA:  OKAY.



         2  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         3  Q.   I'M GOING TO ASK THAT YOU BE HANDED A COPY OF



         4  MR. RANSOM'S DEPOSITION TAKEN IN THIS ACTION ON AUGUST THE



         5  7TH, 1998.



         6           MR. LACOVARA:  NO, SORRY, THIS IS THE WRONG ONE.



         7           MAY I HAVE A MOMENT, YOUR HONOR?



         8           THE COURT:  SURE.



         9           (PAUSE.)



        10           MR. LACOVARA:  YOUR HONOR, I WILL HAVE TO MOVE



        11  ALONG.



        12           THE WITNESS:  THIS IS, IN FACT, MR. RANSOM.  AND



        13  I'M QUOTING FROM PAGE 11, AND HE SAYS, "THE ONLY SPECIFIC



        14  EXAMPLE I HAVE IS A FEW YEARS AGO, WE LOOKED AT WE WERE



        15  TRYING TO MAKE A PUSH AT THE CONSUMER MARKET, AND WE



        16  LOOKED AT IT.  THEY WERE TRYING TO MAKE A PUSH AT THE



        17  CONSUMER MARKET.  THE BIG PROBLEM WITH IT IS WE NEEDED



        18  OS/2 PLUS WINDOWS BECAUSE OS/2 DID NOT HAVE THE



        19  COMPATIBILITY.  OS/2 IS AN OPERATING SYSTEM AND WORKED



        20  FINE ON THE SYSTEMS, BUT YOU NEEDED WINDOWS FOR THE



        21  COMPATIBILITY OF ALL THE APPLICATIONS.  SO, IT JUST DIDN'T



        22  MAKE ANY SENSE, RESOURCE-WISE.  BY RESOURCE, I DON'T MEAN



        23  JUST DOUBLE-CHARGING, BUT THE RESOURCES OF THE MACHINE TO



        24  HAVE TWO OPERATING SYSTEMS ON IT.  SO, THAT'S THE ONLY ONE



        25  WE ACTUALLY LOOKED AT A FEW YEARS AGO."�
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         1           I THINK THAT'S THE TESTIMONY THAT I WAS REFERRING



         2  TO.



         3           MR. LACOVARA:  I WITHDRAW THE MOTION TO STRIKE.



         4  BY MR. LACOVARA:



         5  Q.   DO YOU RECALL ANY TESTIMONY FROM OEM'S THAT THE



         6  REASON THEY DID NOT SHIP OS/2 IS BECAUSE IT DID NOT HAVE A



         7  GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE AND WHAT USERS WANTED WAS A



         8  GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE?



         9  A.   I CAN RECALL TESTIMONY THAT THE AVAILABILITY OF THE



        10  GUI WAS RELEVANT.



        11  Q.   AND, IN FACT, ISN'T THAT WHY USERS WOULD HAVE TO HAVE



        12  WINDOWS BECAUSE THEY WANTED APPLICATIONS THAT RAN ON A



        13  GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE AND NOT WITH THE OLD DOS-STYLE



        14  COMMANDS?



        15  A.   I'M SORRY, CAN YOU ASK THAT AGAIN.



        16  Q.   ISN'T THAT WHY PEOPLE--WHY USERS WOULD HAD--EXCUSE



        17  ME.



        18           ISN'T THAT WHY OEM'S WOULD HAVE HAD TO LOAD



        19  WINDOWS BECAUSE THEY WANTED TO GIVE USERS THE ABILITY TO



        20  RUN APPLICATIONS THAT RAN GRAPHICALLY AND DIDN'T REQUIRE



        21  THE OLD STYLE TYPEWRITTEN DOS COMMANDS?



        22  A.   GUI IS IMPORTANT, BUT THE REASON, FUNDAMENTALLY, AS I



        23  THINK WE DISCUSSED THIS BEFORE, WHY--



        24           THE COURT:  GUI?  GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE?



        25           THE WITNESS:  GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE.�
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         1           IT'S PRETTY PATHETIC WHEN SOMEBODY LIKE MYSELF



         2  STARTS TO USE TECHNICAL TERMS.



         3           BUT THE FUNDAMENTAL REASON WHY OEM'S DECIDED--OR



         4  LET'S PUT IT THIS WAY.  CERTAINLY, THE REASON THAT



         5  MICROSOFT BELIEVED THAT THE REASON WHY PEOPLE WERE NOT



         6  GOING TO--OEM'S WERE NOT GOING TO USE OS/2 WAS BECAUSE OF



         7  THE UNAVAILABILITY OF APPLICATIONS ONCE WINDOWS 95 CAME



         8  OUT, AND I THINK WE REFERRED TO THAT AS WELL.



         9           ONCE IBM, FOR WHATEVER REASON, DECIDED NOT TO



        10  SUPPORT WINDOWS 95 APPLICATIONS, IT WAS CLEAR THAT FROM



        11  POINT OF VIEW OF AN OS/2 USER THERE WAS REALLY NO PLACE



        12  FOR THEM TO GO IN THE LONG RUN.  BUT THEY WERE GOING TO BE



        13  STUCK WITH 16-BIT APPLICATIONS, AND THERE JUST SIMPLY



        14  WASN'T ANY FUTURE FOR AN OS/2 USER.



        15  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        16  Q.   NOW, YOU UNDERSTAND--I MEAN, IT IS YOUR UNDERSTANDING



        17  THAT THE FIRST VERSION OF OS/2 DID NOT HAVE A GRAPHICAL



        18  USER INTERFACE; CORRECT?



        19  A.   THE FIRST VERSION OF OS/2 CAME OUT BACK IN--A LONG



        20  TIME AGO.  OS/2 HAS BEEN AROUND FOR A WHILE.  YOU ARE



        21  TALKING ABOUT THE EIGHTIES?



        22  Q.   I UNDERSTAND THAT, SIR, BUT WOULD YOU ANSWER MY



        23  QUESTION, PLEASE.



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   THAT'S TRUE.  AND YOUR UNDERSTANDING IS THAT IT DID�
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         1  NOT ATTRACT A LARGE--AND THAT'S BEFORE WINDOWS 95;



         2  CORRECT?



         3  A.   IF IT WAS IN THE EIGHTIES, IT WAS DEFINITELY BEFORE



         4  WINDOWS 95.



         5  Q.   IN FACT, IT'S BEFORE WINDOWS 3.1; ISN'T THAT TRUE?



         6  A.   YES, I THINK SO.



         7  Q.   AND IT'S, INDEED, BEFORE MOST OF THE CONDUCT THAT YOU



         8  SAY GAVE MICROSOFT A MONOPOLY INITIALLY; ISN'T THAT ALSO



         9  TRUE?



        10  A.   WE ARE NOW GOING SIGNIFICANTLY FAR BACK IN HISTORY.



        11  MY UNDERSTANDING OF THE QUESTION WAS WHETHER OR NOT



        12  MICROSOFT HAS MONOPOLY POWER TODAY AS OPPOSED TO IN THE



        13  1980'S.



        14  Q.   IN FACT, IBM WAS AHEAD OF THE GAME IN TERMS OF



        15  OPERATING SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT WITH ONE EXCEPTION, THAT THEY



        16  DIDN'T GIVE USERS THE KIND OF INTERFACE THAT THEY WANTED;



        17  ISN'T THAT RIGHT?



        18  A.   WHEN?



        19  Q.   THE FIRST VERSION OF OS/2.



        20  A.   WHEN OS/2 FIRST CAME OUT, IT WAS THE FIRST 32-BIT



        21  OPERATING SYSTEM.  I THINK LIKE THE SST, IT WAS AHEAD OF



        22  ITS TIME.  PERHAPS A LITTLE BIT TOO FAR AHEAD OF ITS TIME.



        23  Q.   AND WHEN DID IBM DEVELOP OS/2 VERSION TWO?



        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I CAN'T GIVE YOU A DATE.



        25  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT OS/2 WARP IS?�
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         1  A.   I CERTAINLY HEARD THE TERM.



         2  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW LONG IS--AND YOU UNDERSTAND IT TO BE



         3  A LATER VERSION OF THE INITIAL OS/2 OPERATING SYSTEM;



         4  CORRECT?



         5  A.   YES.  I ASSUME IT HAS SOMETHING TO DO WITH STAR TREK.



         6  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW LONG AFTER OS/2 WAS INTRODUCED INTO



         7  THE MARKETPLACE THAT OS/2 WARP WAS INTRODUCED?



         8  A.   I CAN'T GIVE YOU A NUMBER OF YEARS.



         9  Q.   DOES THE ANSWER SEVEN OR EIGHT YEARS SOUND ABOUT



        10  RIGHT TO YOU?



        11  A.   IF YOU TELL ME THAT IT'S SEVEN OR EIGHT YEARS, I WILL



        12  ACCEPT YOUR ASSERTION.



        13  Q.   WE DISCUSSED MR. SOYRING'S TESTIMONY THAT WHEN OS/2



        14  WARP VERSION TWO WAS OFFERED IN 1995 IT REQUIRED MORE



        15  MEMORY THAN WAS ON THE AVERAGE HOME MACHINE BEING SHIPPED



        16  AT THE TIME.  DO YOU RECALL OUR DISCUSSIONS ABOUT THAT



        17  YESTERDAY?



        18  A.   WE HAD A DISCUSSION YESTERDAY THAT OS/2.



        19  Q.   THURSDAY, SIR.



        20  A.   SORRY, THAT WE HAD A DISCUSSION ABOUT OS/2 REQUIRING



        21  MORE MEMORY THAN--



        22  Q.   THAN SHIPPED ON THE AVERAGE HOME--THAT THERE WAS



        23  AVAILABLE ON THE TYPICAL HOME MACHINE SHIPPING AT THAT



        24  TIME.



        25  A.   I HAVE NO PARTICULAR MEMORY OF IT, BUT I THINK THAT'S�
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         1  PERFECTLY CONSISTENT WITH WHAT I UNDERSTAND THE MEMORY



         2  REQUIREMENTS OF OS/2 WAS.



         3  Q.   NOW, DO YOU RECALL WHEN WE LOOKED AT DR. MYHRVOLD'S



         4  ARTICLE ABOUT--OR ANALYSIS OF THE ECONOMICS OF THE



         5  SOFTWARE INDUSTRY?



         6  A.   YES.



         7  Q.   DID HE SAY THAT IF YOU HAVE A COUPLE OF BAD VERSIONS



         8  IN A ROW--I'M JUST PARAPHRASING--YOU'RE BASICALLY DEAD IN



         9  THE WATER IN THE SOFTWARE MARKETPLACE?



        10  A.   HE WAS SPEAKING THERE OF THE SOFTWARE INDUSTRY IN



        11  GENERAL.



        12           AND HE CERTAINLY WASN'T--YES, I DO RECALL THAT.



        13  Q.   NOW, DO YOU THINK IT MIGHT BE THE CASE THAT IT WASN'T



        14  MICROSOFT'S, IN YOUR WORDS, MONOPOLY THAT DOOMED OS/2, BUT



        15  IT WAS A REPEATED AND LONG-STANDING PATTERN OF DESIGN



        16  MISTAKES MADE BY THE IBM CORPORATION THAT WAS RESPONSIBLE



        17  FOR THE COMMERCIAL FAILURE OF THAT OPERATING SYSTEM?



        18  A.   I CAN'T SIT HERE AND TELL YOU THAT IBM NEVER MADE



        19  MISTAKES.  OBVIOUSLY, IT'S MADE SEVERAL IN SEVERAL



        20  DIMENSIONS, AND SO DO WE ALL.



        21           THE ISSUE, THOUGH, IT SEEMS TO ME, IS NOT ONE OF



        22  WHETHER OR NOT OS/2 MADE MISTAKES OR WAS PERFECT.  IT'S



        23  QUITE CLEAR THAT MICROSOFT MAKES A LARGE NUMBER OF



        24  MISTAKES AS WELL.  THE ISSUE IS, DOES THE DOMINANT FIRM



        25  UNDERTAKE ACTIONS WHICH AFFECT COMPETITION IN THAT MARKET.�
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         1  IF IT DOES THAT, IT IS NOT SOMEHOW--IT'S NOT SOMEHOW ALL



         2  RIGHT JUST BECAUSE YOUR COMPETITOR IS--I WANT TO SAY



         3  HUMAN, BUT IT'S A CORPORATION.  I GUESS YOUR COMPETITOR



         4  ALSO MAKES MISTAKES.  I THINK AS SOMEBODY ONCE COMMENTED,



         5  IT IS INAPPROPRIATE OR ILLEGAL TO TRIP SOMEBODY--FOR THE



         6  LEADER IN THE RACE TO TRIP SOMEBODY EVEN IF HE IS ONLY



         7  SECOND.



         8           SO, THE RELEVANCE OF THE QUESTION ESCAPES ME,



         9  SHOULD WE SAY.



        10  Q.   CAN YOU INDULGE ME AND ANSWER IT NONETHELESS, SIR?



        11  A.   WELL, AT 4:30 WE WILL HAVE TO ASK FOR THE QUESTION



        12  AGAIN.



        13  Q.   THE QUESTION IS:  COULD IT BE THE CASE THAT THE



        14  COMMERCIAL FAILURE OF OS/2 HAD--WAS CAUSED BY IBM'S DESIGN



        15  DEFICIENCIES AND MISTAKES TO WHICH THEY HAVE ADMITTED IN



        16  TESTIMONY TO THIS COURT, AND NOT ANY ACTION OF THE



        17  MICROSOFT CORPORATION OR THE EXISTENCE OF MONOPOLY POWER?



        18  A.   I HAVE NOTHING IN PARTICULAR TO OFFER YOU ON THE



        19  SUBJECT OF IBM DESIGN MISTAKES.  I THINK YOU ALREADY HAVE



        20  A WITNESS ON THAT, AND EITHER HE HAS PRESENTED THAT



        21  ARGUMENT OR NOT PRESENTED THAT ARGUMENT.



        22  Q.   SO, YOU'RE NOT COMPETENT TO OFFER AN OPINION ON WHAT



        23  CAUSED OS/2 TO FAIL IN THE MARKETPLACE.  ISN'T THAT REALLY



        24  THE IMPLICATION OF YOUR LAST ANSWER, SIR?



        25  A.   NO, I'M COMPETENT TO OFFER AN OPINION BASED ON THE�
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         1  DOCUMENTS AS TO WHY MICROSOFT BELIEVED THAT OS/2 WOULD



         2  FAIL IN THE MARKETPLACE AND THE PARTICULAR REFERENCE TO



         3  WHICH I'M OFFERING YOU IS A DETAILED COMPARISON BETWEEN



         4  OS/2 AND WINDOWS 95 WHICH WAS CONDUCTED BY MR. BRAD CHASE.



         5  AND HE GOES THROUGH AND COMPARES OS/2 AND WINDOWS 95.



         6  Q.   BUT ISN'T THAT EIGHT YEARS AFTER IBM STARTED MAKING



         7  MISTAKES WITH OS/2, SIR?



         8  A.   THAT MAY VERY WELL BE, BUT WE ARE NOW TALKING ABOUT



         9  WHY OS/2 FAILED IN 1995 AGAINST WINDOWS 95, AND WHEN



        10  ASKED--IN GOING THROUGH THAT IN A DETAILED COMPARISON, HE



        11  CITES FOUR FACTORS.  ONE, HE THINKS THAT WINDOWS IS A



        12  LITTLE BIT FASTER.  SECOND, HE THINKS THAT IT WORKS A



        13  LITTLE BIT BETTER.



        14           BUT WHAT HE CITES AS THE STRONGEST MOST IMPORTANT



        15  ELEMENT IN WHY HE THINKS OS/2 DOESN'T STAND A CHANCE IN



        16  THE MARKET IS BECAUSE OS/2 SIMPLY HAS DECIDED--IBM DECIDED



        17  NOT TO SUPPORT WINDOWS 95 APPLICATIONS, AND IT IS THE



        18  ABSENCE OF THOSE APPLICATIONS, OF NEW APPLICATIONS COMING



        19  OUT, WHICH, IN HIS OPINION, DOOMS OS/2 IN THE CONSUMER



        20  MARKET.  AND THAT, IN FACT, IS WHAT TURNED OUT TO HAPPEN.



        21  Q.   TURNING TO MR. RANSOM'S TESTIMONY, DO YOU RECALL



        22  MR. RANSOM TESTIFYING THAT EVEN TODAY PACKARD BELL, AT



        23  LEAST, WILL TAKE A LOOK AT ANY OPERATING SYSTEM THAT A



        24  VENDOR WANTS TO SHOW TO IT AND WILL CONSIDER SHIPPING IT



        25  ON ITS MACHINES?�
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         1  A.   THAT'S THE NEXT LINE AFTER THE PARAGRAPH I READ.



         2  Q.   AND YOU BELIEVE THAT--YOU HAVE NO REASON TO DISAGREE



         3  WITH THAT TESTIMONY, DO YOU?



         4  A.   I THINK ANYBODY WILL LOOK AT ANYTHING.  IT DOESN'T



         5  COST MUCH TO LOOK AT ANYTHING.



         6  Q.   NOW, IN FOOTNOTE 19 YOU CITE A NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS'



         7  TESTIMONY FOR THE PROPOSITION THAT THEY, AGAIN AS WE



         8  DISCUSSED A FEW MOMENTS AGO, THEY REGARD PRE-LOADING



         9  WINDOWS 98 AS COMMERCIALLY NECESSARY.



        10  A.   I THINK SOME OF THOSE REFERENCES THE QUESTION IS



        11  WINDOWS 98.  SOME OF THE QUESTIONS IS ANY WINDOWS



        12  OPERATING SYSTEM.  IT'S A MIXTURE.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  AND YOU DIDN'T EXPLAIN TO THE COURT THE REASON



        14  WHY THEY ALL SAID THEY FELT THEY NEEDED TO LOAD WINDOWS 98



        15  OR WINDOWS 95 AND NOT OTHER OPERATING SYSTEMS, DID YOU,



        16  SIR?



        17  A.   DID I JUST EXPLAIN IT NOW?  I HAVE ONLY JUST BEEN



        18  ASKED.



        19  Q.   YOU DON'T SAY IT IN YOUR TESTIMONY, DO YOU?



        20  A.   SAY WHAT?



        21  Q.   WHY IT IS THAT THEY GAVE THOSE ANSWERS, OR WHY IT IS



        22  THEY BELIEVE THIS TO BE THE CASE.



        23  A.   NO.  WHAT I SAY THERE IS THAT THEY BELIEVE THAT A



        24  WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM IS A COMMERCIAL NECESSITY IN



        25  THEIR BUSINESS.�
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         1  Q.   LET'S LOOK AT WHAT THESE GENTLEMAN SAID.  FIRST, I



         2  WANT TO ASK YOU ABOUT MR. RANSOM.  YOU HAVE HIS TESTIMONY.



         3  LOOK AT PAGE 17, PLEASE, LINES NINE THROUGH 24.



         4  A.   OKAY.  NOW WE ARE GOING TO RUN INTO PAGE 17--NO, WE



         5  DO HAVE IT HERE.



         6  Q.   WHAT HE SAID IS--



         7  A.   PAGE 17, PAGE NUMBER.  IT'S YOUR FLAG PAGE AGAIN?



         8  Q.   THERE ARE TWO MR. RANSOMS.



         9           MR. LACOVARA:  DOES HE ONLY HAVE ONE THERE?



        10  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        11  Q.   MR. RANSOM'S AUGUST 7TH DEPOSITION ON PAGE 17.



        12  A.   NO, I DON'T HAVE THAT.



        13           MR. LACOVARA:  COULD YOU HAND HIM ANOTHER COPY,



        14  PLEASE.



        15           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)



        16  BY MR. LACOVARA:



        17  Q.   HE'S ASKED WHETHER TO CONTINUE TO INSTALL



        18  WINDOWS 95--



        19  A.   LET ME FIND THE PAGE.



        20  Q.   I'M GOING TO READ IT INTO THE RECORD TO EXPEDITE



        21  MATTERS.



        22  A.   I COULD READ ALONG WITH YOU.  GIVE ME THE PAGE



        23  NUMBER.



        24  Q.   PAGE 17, LINE NINE.  HE SAID, "I WOULD HAVE TO SPEAK



        25  TO THE COMMERCIAL BUSINESS.  IN THE COMMERCIAL BUSINESS WE�
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         1  DO, IN FACT, INSTALL WHATEVER OPERATING SYSTEM IS ORDERED



         2  BY THE CUSTOMER.  AND WE STILL HAVE SOME TODAY THAT THERE



         3  ARE WITH NO DOS, BUT WE STILL DELIVER SOME 3.11, WHICH IS



         4  SILL SUPPORTED BY MICROSOFT.  SO, COMMERCIALLY, AS AN



         5  EXAMPLE, IN-HOUSE, WE'RE A WINDOWS 95 COMPANY, AND IT WILL



         6  PROBABLY TAKE US A YEAR TO CONVERT TO WINDOWS 98 JUST



         7  BECAUSE IT'S A VERY DIFFERENT PROCESS MAKING A DECISION



         8  FOR AN ENTERPRISE.  BUT CONSUMER-WISE, WE HAVE TO HAVE THE



         9  LATEST AND THE GREATEST."



        10           WHAT DO YOU UNDERSTAND MR. RANSOM TO MEAN BY THE



        11  LATEST AND THE GREATEST, SIR?



        12  A.   HE'S ASKING THE QUESTION HERE, DO WE HAVE TO BE ABLE



        13  TO PROVIDE WINDOWS 98 AS WELL AS WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS



        14  3.X, AND WHAT HE'S SAYING IS SOME OF OUR CUSTOMERS WANT



        15  3.X, AND SOME OF OUR CUSTOMERS WANT 95, AND SOME OF THEM



        16  WANT 98.  WE HAVE TO BE ABLE TO PROVIDE WINDOWS 98 IF



        17  PEOPLE WANT WINDOWS 98.  WHATEVER IT IS THAT OUR CONSUMERS



        18  WANT.



        19  Q.   MY QUESTION TO YOU, SIR, WAS VERY SPECIFIC, AND I



        20  DON'T THINK YOU ANSWERED IT.



        21           WHAT DO YOU BELIEVE MR. RANSOM MEANT WHEN HE SAID



        22  CONSUMERS WANT, QUOTE, THE LATEST AND THE GREATEST?



        23  A.   IN THIS PARTICULAR CONTEXT?



        24  Q.   YES, SIR.



        25  A.   I CAN ONLY ASSUME THAT HE'S SPEAKING ABOUT WINDOWS�
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         1  OPERATING SYSTEM.



         2  Q.   AND ISN'T HE TALKING ABOUT WINDOWS 98 FOR THE



         3  CONSUMER MARKET?



         4  A.   I THINK THAT'S A REASONABLE INFERENCE.



         5  Q.   IT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT CONSUMERS REGARD



         6  WINDOWS 98 AS THE LATEST AND THE GREATEST FOR OPERATING



         7  SYSTEMS?



         8  A.   NO.  I THINK THAT MR. RANSOM IS GOING THROUGH A LONG



         9  DEPOSITION AT THIS POINT AND IS TRYING TO FIND SOMETHING



        10  LIGHT-HEARTED TO SAY.



        11  Q.   TRY TO FIND SOMETHING WHAT?



        12  A.   THE TERM, LATEST AND THE GREATEST.  HE'S SAYING THAT



        13  WINDOWS 98 IS A COMMERCIAL NECESSITY.  OUR CUSTOMERS



        14  DEMAND IT.  AND WE HAVE TO--WE HAVE TO RESPOND.  WE ARE



        15  JUST ONE COMPETING OEM WITH MANY OTHER COMPETING OEM'S



        16  THAT WE DON'T HAVE THE ALTERNATIVE OF PROVIDING A PRODUCT



        17  THAT, PERHAPS, PEOPLE DON'T WANT OR TELLING CUSTOMERS



        18  THINGS THAT THEY DON'T WANT.



        19  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO TAKE A LOOK AT WEBB MCKINNEY'S



        20  TESTIMONY.



        21           DO YOU RECALL WHO MR. MCKINNEY WAS?



        22  A.   NO.



        23  Q.   DO YOU RECALL HIM TO WORK FOR HEWLETT-PACKARD



        24  CORPORATION?



        25  A.   THAT WOULD BE REASONABLE.�
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         1  Q.   AND HE HAS A HIGH POSITION IN WHAT HEWLETT-PACKARD



         2  CALLS THE "HOME PRODUCTS DIVISION"; IS THAT CORRECT?



         3  A.   I ASSUME SO.



         4  Q.   TAKE A LOOK AT PAGE 11 OF HIS DEPOSITION.



         5           AND I THINK YOU WOULDN'T THINK THAT HE WOULD BE



         6  TIRED BY THE TIME OF PAGE 11 AS YOU MR. RANSOM, YOU SAID,



         7  WAS TIRED AT PAGE 17?



         8  A.   I SHOULD WITHDRAW THAT.  MY APOLOGIES.  I'M GETTING



         9  TIRED.



        10           THE COURT:  I THINK WE ARE ALL GETTING TIRED.  I



        11  THINK THIS IS TIME TO QUIT FOR THE DAY.



        12           MR. LACOVARA:  THANK YOU YOUR HONOR.



        13           THE COURT:  WE WILL COME BACK TOMORROW MORNING AT



        14  10:00.



        15           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:43 P.M., THE HEARING WAS



        16  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., THE FOLLOWING DAY.)



        17
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER



         2



         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RPR, COURT REPORTER, DO



         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE



         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO



         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER



         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING



         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE



         9  PROCEEDINGS.



        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,



        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS



        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE



        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.



        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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